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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013 (the “Year”).

During the Year, we made solid progress with our mega-integrated
property development flagship project, Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan
("Goldin Metropolitan” or the “Project”).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Tianjin Market

In 2012, Tianjin maintained a momentum of rapid economic
growth. Its gross domestic product (“GDP"”) grew by 13.8% over
the year 2011, outpacing the country’s average. Tianjin continued
to attract local and foreign investment in 2012 as the municipality
strove to improve its investment environment. Meanwhile, 152
companies among the Fortune Global 500 have invested in Tianjin,
reinforcing the city’s status as the economic hub of China’s Bohai
Rim Region. In fact, Forbes China’s listing also ranked Tianjin 10th
amongst Mainland China’s 100 Best Cities for Business for a third
consecutive year. Tianjin was only two places behind Beijing, which
ranked eighth. Such a strong showing is the reason the Group
remains optimistic about the city’s development and the growth
potential of its real estate sector.

In 2012, the Central Government was trying to strike a balance
between stimulating the country’s economic growth and cooling
the property market. It adopted property market control measures
with a view to sustaining a healthy development of the real
estate market in the long term. Such control measures resulted in
volatility in both transaction volumes and prices. To accommodate
the changing market environment, the Group has been closely
monitoring China’s property market trend and has taken
appropriate actions to cope with market changes and demand. The
Group optimized its development plan and the residential sales of
the Project, and stepped up efforts in strengthening the Company’s
brand and image with successful marketing and promotion
activities. Moreover, the Group gained wide publicity for its flagship
project, Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan, by hosting international polo

tournaments at its Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club (”Goldin

Metropolitan Polo Club”).

£ dE)

RKEMS

MRZT—ZF REZEERRBENARY - H
WEEERER-_ZT——FIERI38%  mREH
FHEF - RZTE—ZF - RETMBRNARAERAXR
ERIRERE - BERS|I A RINERE o HiEF
B (T EIRS008FEFI2R AR ERER
B E—SEEEEATERD G ELCERM 2
7 o R - (B TR B INESE = FiERIETIA
HR B K B R R S TS Z 1001 T - XERT
F+ - BXRERE) LR - ERMMMERSIZ XK
B AREHREMBEEEEMEHETEZRE
BRI -

R-F——F  PREFZHERNHE AL ELE R
HOBEMERESR TS - BEFET 2RI
R PRENCRBETRAZEER  BHR5H
ERERLERNS - RERRESENTIHIRE
AEE-EEVERERNEDER - WRBEET
BENEATSEEL - AEEERICEERAE R
EITARBRB ZEEHE - YEMANRELTISE
EREFES  UINBARRZmERER 1t
S AEEFEBANRZREBRFHE ([REFR
BERERSHRES  REEBRBEHFE« BR
RIWSEZNHMEE -




o~ -

Chairman’s Statement & & i & =

The Group aspires to be a developer of high-end and large
integrated property projects. As the first step towards the goal, we
embarked on Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan project to demonstrate
our high quality standards, capitalizing on Tianjins excellent growth
potential in Bohai Rim Region for the long term.

Goldin Metropolitan

Goldin Metropolitan is the Group’s high-end integrated property
project. Total investment of the Project is estimated to reach
approximately US$10 billion and is expecting completion by
2016 in phases. With a planned gross floor area of approximately
1,890,000 square metres, the Project comprises of an international
central business district (“CBD") with the iconic skyscraper Goldin
Finance 117, a luxury residential zone, namely Fortune Heights
("Fortune Heights”) and Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club, which is
complemented by Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Hotel (the “Goldin
Metropolitan Hotel”). The Project, which is undertaken by
internationally acclaimed architectural consultancies, construction
companies and the Group’s professional team, boasts a unique
architectural style and project planning. With its unprecedented
scale, the Project will be a new metropolis-like zone offering
comprehensive residential and business facilities to its residents and
tenants.

A milestone was reached in the Group’s development during
the Year as it completed the foundation construction of Goldin
Finance 117 and finished the construction of Phase One residential
property of Goldin Metropolitan and its final landscape works
are undergoing. In addition, both Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club
and Goldin Metropolitan Hotel are fully operational, while the
construction of the remaining parts of the Project is on schedule.
The Group is confident of the success of the Project because of its
prime location and quality, and the encouraging progress made.
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Central Business District

The 597 metre-high Goldin Finance 117 complex is planned to
house the headquarters of international and sizeable domestic
enterprises. It consists of high-rise twin towers, a luxury shopping
mall, cultural and recreational facilities, an international convention
and exhibition center, a distinctive boutique hotel and deluxe
serviced apartments, showcasing Goldin Metropolitan’s state-
of-the-art construction craftsmanship. It enjoys an excellent
geographic location in the fast growing business hub of the city
and comprehensive transportation network. To the south of the
Project lies the Tianjin South Station of the Beijing-Shanghai High-
speed Railway and the newly opened Metro Line 3, which efficiently
connects the project to Beijing and its major districts and Shanghai.
The CBD also adjoins the Jinji Expressway and Tianjin Station of
the Beijing-Tianjin Intercity Railway. The entire Tianjin metropolitan
area is connected with the rest of China by well-developed
transportation. Goldin Metropolitan’s CBD is poised to become a
new commercial hub of Tianjin upon completion.
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During the Year, we made a breakthrough in the construction
work of CBD. In particular, the piling works and construction
of the diaphragm wall of the basement of the second phase of
CBD (including Twin Towers, Opera House, Boutique Hotel and
International Convention and Exhibition Centre) commenced in
September 2012, while the basement of Goldin Finance 117 was
topped out and, the first ten floors of the core wall structure and
the first eight floors of floor slab of Goldin Finance 117 were
completed in April 2013. The entire project of Goldin Finance 117 is
expected to be completed by 2016 and all of the buildings in CBD
are expected to be available for sale or lease in phases. We expect
that Goldin Finance 117 will rank fifth among the world’s top 10
tallest buildings when it is completed. As the continued economic
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growth in the region boosted demand for world class Grade-A
offices, Goldin Metropolitan’s CBD will certainly satisfy such
demand with comprehensive ancillary facilities, thereby appealing

to multinational corporate tenants.

Fortune Heights

Fortune Heights illustrates the Group’s philosophy of “Elite
Community Counts” with its high-end residential properties such
as high-rise residential buildings, luxurious villas and townhouses.
The properties will be built in a low-density layout and supported
by a wide range of community facilities including educational
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institutes and a greenbelt zone. The project will reaffirm Goldin
Metropolitan’s reputation as Tianjin’s most desirable place of

residence.

The Project’s low-density Phase One residential property
development of Fortune Heights has been launched for sale
in June 2013. Consisting of around 700 units in the form of
villas, townhouses and apartments with total gross floor area of
approximately 208,800 square metres, the Phase One has drawn
enthusiastic responses from potential buyers. We are confident
about the prospects of Fortune Heights. Phase Two residential
property of Fortune Heights, which will have gross floor area of
around 501,000 square metres, is ready for sale. The construction
of it is now well underway and is expecting completion by 2014.
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projects in 2013 by “The Sixth Jinghua Property Annual Ranking
2012" for its luxurious artistic design and excellent craftsmanship.
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Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club
The Group is determined to bring traditional and classic activities
to the rapidly growing city of Tianjin through Goldin Metropolitan.
Leveraging the elegance and nobility of polo, we have established
the world-class polo club which adds a touch of class to the Project.
The 890,000-square metre Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club consists of
an international polo clubhouse, a 167-room five-star luxury hotel,
specialty restaurants, two international standard polo fields, stables
and other essential facilities. The Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club has
been regularly hosting prestigious international polo tournaments
since its opening in November 2010. It has become one of Asia’s
best polo clubs and enhanced the Project’s high status, which is
unparalleled in the region. During the Year, Goldin Metropolitan Polo
Club posted a significant growth in the number of its memberships.

During the Year, Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club has organized some
of the world’s most prestigious polo tournaments. In early October
2012, it co-organized the “Fortune Heights Super Nations Cup 2012”
with the Federation of International Polo (“FIP”) and Tianjin Sports
Bureau. As one of the most spectacular tournaments in international
polo, the tournament brought together four elite polo teams from
Argentina, England, Hong Kong of China and the United States of
America to compete for the trophy.

Between the 25th of January and the 3rd of February 2013, Goldin
Metropolitan Polo Club once again organized the “Fortune Heights
Snow Polo World Cup 2013" with FIP's endorsement. Twelve
national and regional polo teams contested the polo world cup
tournament, including Hong Kong of China and the world’s elite
polo teams from Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Canada, Chile, England,
France, India, New Zealand, South Africa and the United States of
America. The tournament attracted a large number of prominent
guests, mostly lovers of this noble sport, and equestrian professionals
from all over the world. These world-renowned events also generated
extensive news coverage, including stories or features in leading
local, regional and global print, online and broadcast media. They
helped promote the brand and image of a premium and well-known
property developer, Goldin Properties, in the region.

During the 9th-12th of June 2013, Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club
held “Maserati Metropolitan Polo Classic 2013" and successfully
drew market.attention from global world-class polo players and
lovers. This international tournament is one of the most competitive
invitational tournaments in the world.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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PROSPECTS
Outlook

Despite a series of stimulus measures implemented by the
authorities in the United States, Euro-zone and Japan, the market
is still wary of the strength of the global economic recovery. The
continued urbanization and economic growth in China is expected
to boost fixed asset investment and will prompt a further increase
in disposable income, thereby sustaining a growth momentum in
the country’s real estate sector in the long run.

The Group expects that there are both challenges and opportunities
for China’s economy and real estate industry in the short term. The
Central Government reiterated its determination to curb rampant
property speculation by introducing the “State Council’s Five New
Measures To Enhance Regulation of Property Market” (7B F 1)
in late February 2013. The policy aims at stabilizing home prices.
Although the new measures will restrain both speculations on, and
investment in the property market, they will help consolidate the
market for healthier development in the long term. Meanwhile, a
number of the country’s real estate developers continued to post
considerable growth in contracted sales since the beginning of the
year and the property sector will probably remain a growth driver of
the country’s economy. This has boosted the Group’s confidence in
the long-term development of the property market.

In fact, China’s continued urbanization and expanding economy
will continue to attract foreign investment, thereby resulting in a
soaring demand for Grade-A offices in prime locations of China’s
cities, including Tianjin. The increasing spending power and wealth
is expected to create demand for high-

end residences of property projects.
With the unique positioning’,
and unparalleled quality of
its flagship project, the
Group is well-positioned
to capture these market
opportunities. The Group
has launched Phase One
residential sales of
Fortune Heights
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in June 2013. Meanwhile, we are also closely monitoring the
progress of the construction of Goldin Finance 117 as well as the
remaining development projects.

The Group will also seek new opportunities to replenish new
land banks in prime locations of China and Hong Kong for future
developments with a view to developing “Goldin Properties” into
a premium brand of high-end real estate developments. In view of
the growth potential in the property development and investment
businesses, the Group is ready to form a joint venture to expand
its business by exploring and increasing its premium land reserve at
prime locations for future development in Hong Kong and major
cities of China so as to further enhance the Group's position in the
high-end real estate sector.

Looking ahead, we are dedicated to providing the market with top-
quality and truly visionary projects that define a new living standard.
With the completion and launch of Goldin Metropolitan in phases
over the coming years, we believe the net book value of the Group
does not truly reflect the market value of the Project. The Project
will lay a solid foundation for the future growth of the Group and
generate considerable returns to our shareholders.
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to the Group’s shareholders, investors and business partners for
their trust and support. | would also like to extend my heartfelt
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Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Results

For the Year, the Group recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$68 million (2012: approximately HK$450 million), representing
a decrease of 85%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease of approximately HK$869 million in the fair value gain
of convertible bonds and decrease of approximately HK$188
million in exchange gain of convertible bonds for the year which
was resulted from the significant conversion of convertible bonds
into ordinary shares of the Company around the end of the year
ended 31 March 2012 and the redemption of Convertible Bonds
due 2012 during the Year, net off with the effect of increase of
approximately HK$786 million in the fair value gain of investment
properties for the year. During the Year, the Group recorded
approximately HK$129 million (2012: HK$57 million) in revenue,
representing an increase of 126%, which was mainly derived from
Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club and Goldin Metropolitan Hotel.
The revenue growth was attributable to the Group’s continuous
efforts in improving business performance as well as the gradually
maturing businesses of Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club and
Goldin Metropolitan Hotel. The Phase One residential property
development of Fortune Heights has been launched for sale in June
2013 whilst other construction works of the Project, including the
CBD and Phase Two residential property development, are well
underway. The Board is confident that the high-end integrated
flagship project, Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan, will become a great
success for the Group in coming years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Working capital and debts

The Group's working capital as of 31 March 2013 was
approximately HK$4,911,541,000, representing an increase of 16%
when compared with HK$4,218,609,000 as of 31 March 2012. The
current ratio of the Group changed from 2.85 times as of 31 March
2012 to 2.20 times as of 31 March 2013.

During the Year, the Group obtained new borrowings from a
bank and its substantial shareholder, Goldin Group (Investment)
Limited which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan
Sutong, amounting to approximately HK$337,662,000 and
HK$2,568,966,000 respectively. Gearing ratio (total debt to total
assets) of the Group however was still maintained at a healthy level
of 13.5% (31 March 2012: 1.5%).
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As of 31 March 2013, the outstanding convertible bonds of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$226,153,000 compared
to HK$280,181,000 as of 31 March 2012. During the Year, an
amount of HK$7,480,000 in outstanding convertible bonds was
converted into 2,137,199 ordinary shares. A principal amount
of approximately HK$50,503,000 in outstanding Convertible
Bonds due 2012 was redeemed by the Company at 115% on the
maturity date (i.e. 28 August 2012). The amount of the outstanding
convertible bonds as of 31 March 2013 represents 1.0% of the
Group's total assets as compared to a 31 March 2012 figure of
1.5%. The total liabilities, excluding convertible bonds and deferred
tax liabilities, represented 28.9% of the Group's total assets as of
31 March 2013 and 12.2% of its total assets as of 31 March 2012.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Since the Group's transactions and assets are primarily denominated
in Renminbi, the expected appreciation of this currency will benefit
the Group.

The Group continues to exercise a strict control policy and did not

engage in any speculative trading in debt securities or financial
derivatives during the Year.
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

As of 31 March 2013, the Group had contingent liabilities
and commitments of approximately HK$2,000,000 and
HK$14,699,000,000 respectively (31 March 2012: HK$2,000,000
and HK$2,696,000,000 respectively).

For the commitments, the future committed capital expenditures
to be incurred mainly for the development of properties
under development for sale and investment properties under
construction up to 2014 and 2016 are HK$5,213,000,000
(2012: HK$808,000,000) and HK$9,484,000,000 (2012:
HK$1,780,000,000), respectively.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2012: Nil).

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As of 31 March 2013, the Group had 1,185 employees (2012:
1,241 employees). Staff costs for the Year (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$313,486,000 (2012:
HK$251,476,000). The Group ensures that the remuneration of
its employees is competitive and the staff is rewarded for their
performance. In addition to using an industry average as reference
for setting remuneration, other benchmarks which are used include
prevailing market conditions within the general framework of the
Group’s remuneration system.
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Corporate Governance Report

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) are committed to the establishment and maintenance
of good corporate governance practices and procedures to
safeguard the interests of all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and to enhance accountability and transparency.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013 (the “Year”), the
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best practices
of Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except
for the following deviations:

(@) Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
Under this code provision, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual for a balance of power and authority.

Currently, Mr. Pan Sutong is serving both as the Company's
chairman and chief executive officer. However, the Board
considers that this situation will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company. This is because the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals with
demonstrated integrity. Further, decisions of the Board are
made by way of majority voting. The Board believes that this
structure is conductive to strong, prompt response and efficient
management and implementation.

(b) Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code
Under this code provision, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (“INEDs") are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company
under their appointment letters. The Board believes that such
practice will offer stability at the Board level while at the
same time, independence is safeguarded by the necessary
rotation, retirement and re-election procedures which involves
shareholders’ approval.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Relevant Employees

The Company has adopted the terms of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The Company
has made specific enquiry of each of its directors (the “Directors”)
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code during the Year,
and all Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

Relevant employees of the Company, who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities, have been requested to comply with
provisions similar to those terms in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

Board Composition
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Huang Xiaojian (resigned on 29 November 2012)
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond

Mr. Li Huamao

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey

INEDs

Mr. Lai Chi Kin

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.

18]
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Corporate Governance Report & %

Board of Directors — continued

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the management team within the
control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) of the Company. Further details of these
committees are set out in this corporate governance report.

The Board is collectively responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which were prepared
on a going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Also, there
is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection and appointment of the auditor.

INEDs

Pursuant to rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three INEDs. All of the INEDs have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board has delegated the following duties and responsibilities in
respect of the corporate governance functions of the Company to
the Executive Committee:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of directors and senior management of the
Company;
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Board of Directors — continued

Corporate Governance Function — continued
3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

5. toreview the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Executive
Committee has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

During the Year, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with
the INEDs without the presence of the Executive Directors. Details
of their attendance record are set out in the following table:

EEE-&

ERERRRE &

3. MERERAQREMTEARAREERTIE
ZRERER

4. HIE BEREZEARADAZEERES
ZBRFEARERTFMIE) R

5. BRI ARREST TR ZBEAREREER
HENZIEE -

N

RAFERNEERRERAY  HITZE82CRE
BERERETEREAREE

RAFER EFETFABERNNTESTREN
BATEIT—RER - WEZHFLEFIIN TR

Number of Meetings Attended/
Number of Meetings Held
HESERE ERETAE

Mr. Pan Sutong EERLE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin REERSE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carman REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai EAEBE L

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the Year. Additional meetings
would be arranged, if and when required. Notices of at least 14 days
are given for regular Board meetings and the Company also aims at
giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings were held. At the
Board meetings, the Directors discussed and formulated overall
strategies for the Company, discussed and approved annual and
interim results, and other material transactions and developments of
the Group. Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Board were
sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively in a
timely manner.
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Board Meetings — continued

Details of each Director’s attendance record during the Year are set
out in the following table:
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Number of Meetings Attended/
Number of Board Meetings Held
HESBRY ESEEBRETRHY

Mr. Pan Sutong EEES A
Professor Huang Xiaojian* mERHIE
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun [EIEE S
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TERLEE
Mr. Li Huamao FEL KL
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin mERRAE
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey FTHBLE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin REERSE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai HEEIEL

*  Professor Huang Xiaojian resigned as Executive Director on 29 November
2012, therefore, he did not attend two Board meetings subsequently held
after his resignation.

Directors’ Training

In order to ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant and to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills, the Company has encouraged and funded suitable
trainings for Directors to participate in continuous professional
developments.

Besides, the Company Secretary also provides Directors with (i)
updates on significant development and amendments in the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time and (ii) monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, position and the latest development to enable the
Board to discharge its duties.
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Board Meetings — continued EEEeeE &
Directors’ Training — continued BRI -&

A summary of training received by Directors during the Year TR JIRBEEFRMH L EENAEERNAR
according to the records provided by the Directors is set out in the — #EXEF| 2 E :

table below:

Receiving
in-house
briefings

from Company
Attending Secretary
relevant and/or
seminars, General Counsel
workshops, of Legal
Reading conferences Department
regulatory and/or forums BRARNE
updates HFEMHEBEBEE - & SEEE
HEEEZ I 82 BEEERZ
Name of Directors EEEE BHER &/ SRS R IR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Pan Sutong EEREE 4 - v
Professor Huang Xiaojian* HE R v - v
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun AT L v - v
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TREREE v - v
Mr. Li Huamao ZERGE v - v
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin BEBRKE v v v
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey EHBEE 4 - v
INEDs BE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin RAER L v v v
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen SEXEL v v v
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BERELT v 4 v
*  Resigned as Executive Director on 29 November 2012 Y RCE—CFF—H o AABEHTEF
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Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, which may be modified from time to time,
in accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Lai Chi Kin,
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, with Mr. Lai
Chi Kin acts as the chairman. The Audit Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and can access to
independent external professional advice in accordance with the
Company'’s policy if considered necessary.

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

3. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual and interim reports and accounts, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein; and

4. to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available from
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were
held for, amongst other things, considering and reviewing the
annual and interim results and reports, the external auditor’s audit
findings and other audit issues, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the effectiveness of the internal control system and
the re-appointment of the external auditor. The chief financial
officer of the Company was present at each of such meetings to
report, explain to and answer questions from the members of the
Audit Committee regarding the financial reporting findings and
effectiveness of the internal control systems implemented by the
Company. Draft and final versions of the minutes of such meetings
were sent to the Audit Committee’s members for their comment
and records respectively in a timely manner.
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Board Committees — continued

Audit Committee — continued
Details of each Audit Committee member’s attendance record
during the Year are set out in the following table:

Number of Committee Meetings Attended/
Number of Committee Meetings Held

HEERAE ZE8ERETAE

Mr. Lai Chi Kin (Chairman) REERRSEE(FE)
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai HEEIEL

Remuneration of External Auditor

The Company has engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) as its external auditor. During the Year, fees paid/
payable to Deloitte and PRC local auditors of the Group for audit
services was approximately HK$3,537,000 and HK$595,000,
respectively and for non-audit services was approximately
HK$847,000, which included fees for acting as reporting
accountants and the provision of tax services.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which may be modified from time to
time, in accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely,
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (INED), Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of the
Board) and Mr. Lai Chi Kin (INED), with Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
acts as the chairman. The Remuneration Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and can access to
independent external professional advice in accordance with the
Company'’s policy if considered necessary.

The major role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

1. to formulate and make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;
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Board Committees — continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

2. toreview and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;
and

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.

During the Year, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held for reviewing, considering and endorsing the remuneration
packages proposed for all Directors and senior management of the
Company. Draft and final versions of the minutes of such meeting
were sent to the Remuneration Committee members for their
comment and records respectively in a timely manner.

Details of each Remuneration Committee member’s attendance
record during the Year are set out in the following table:

2. AREFEMIEENHMBR
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B(ERBRAIR BB RZEMAS N 2 EMA
BE) R
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Number of Committee Meetings Attended/
Number of Committee Meetings Held

HEEEAE ZE88RRTAE

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (Chairman) REEE(EE)
Mr. Pan Sutong EEGBEAE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin BRI A

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Board Committees — continued

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 30 March
2012 with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of
the Board), Mr. Lai Chi Kin (INED) and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
(INED), with Mr. Pan Sutong acts as the chairman. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and can access to independent external professional advice
in accordance with the Company's policy if considered necessary.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alias,
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, assess the
independence of INEDs and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors.

During the Year, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
for (a) evaluating the performance and contribution of each of the
retiring Directors during the last financial year of the Company and
the period thereafter up to the date of evaluation; and (b) assessing
the independence of an INED.

Details of each Nomination Committee’s member’s attendance
record during the Year are set out in the following table:

EEEREE &

REERE
KRR ZBE——F=A=+HRILTREEES
WHFTEMBELE - REZEGEE=2KE -
EEFALE(BEREER)  REBELE(BE)R
REXBLCFE)  HPEAMBLEEEEIR -8
FLREGRRHARERUABTERBLERRE
BRTRBEARRNERSFBILINEEEER -

REZBEZIERAR(HFERE)BRHNESFER
B RRRAEK  BRABENEXNRESENE
AHEBEZ BN EERENZTEZTRES
BIEMEFSRNES

RAFEER  RERBEERITT —KE#E » Aa)F
HEUREEENARA L —EMRFERERE
EFHE A MPENRBELER  ROb)FHE—(IBE
BB L o

TRIFINAFEANREREZER

B

EEMKEZHFRDE

Number of Committee Meetings Attended/
Number of Committee Meetings Held
HESERY ZE28BBTAY

Mr. Pan Sutong EERS A
Mr. Lai Chi Kin RERSEAE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REEiEt

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
from the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Executive Committee

The Board established the Executive Committee on 30 March
2012 with written terms of reference. The Executive Committee
comprises two members, namely Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of the
Board) and Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin (Executive Director), with
Mr. Pan Sutong acts as the chairman. The Executive Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and can
access to independent professional advice in accordance with the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.

®
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Board Committees — continued

Executive Committee — continued

The Executive Committee meets periodically or by way of circulation
to discuss/deal with the daily and ordinary operating matters of the
Company as well as to perform the corporate governance functions
of the Group, details of which are set out in the terms of reference
of the Executive Committee which are available on the Company’s
website.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company
and reports to the Chairman of the Board. She is responsible for
advising the Board for corporate governance matters, and ensuring
the Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.

For the Year, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has
complied with paragraph 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Constitutional Documents

During the Year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group in order to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

During the Year, the Board has assessed and strengthened the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
Audit Committee conducted periodic reviews of their assessment
and provided valuable recommendations on the internal control
system of the Group. The assessment covers all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Board is not aware of any significant
areas of concern which may affect the shareholders.

The internal audit department of the Group performs regular audit
reviews on internal control system in order to identify any business
risks, control deficiencies and safeguard the interests of the Group.

The Group will use its best endeavor to further improve the
Company'’s internal control system to ensure achievement of the

Group's objectives.
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Shareholders’ Right

Shareholders’ enquiries

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy on 29 March 2012 (the “Shareholders’
Communication Policy”).

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share registration and related matters to the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders who wish to put enquiries to the Board and relating to
the Group’s corporate matters shall send their enquiries in writing
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office at
22/F, Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central,
Hong Kong or by email at info@goldinppt.com who will ensure
these enquiries to be properly directed to the Board. Besides,
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may request the Company to convene general
meetings in accordance with the Companies Ordinance as well as
the provisions set out in the Company’s articles of association, a
copy of which has been uploaded on the websites of the Company
at www.goldinppt.com and the Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk.

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals for the Company’s
consideration at the general meetings can send their written
proposals stating the objects therein to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s registered office. However, Shareholders must hold
at least 5% of the total number of shares of the Company as at the
date of submitting the proposal in order to qualify for sending the
proposal. Collective number of shares can be from a single person
or multiple shareholders.

2¢)
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the value of strong communication with its
Shareholders, both individual and institutional and its potential
investors. The Company believes that effective communication with
the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Company’s business performance
and strategies.

The Company formulated the Shareholders Communication Policy
internally to ensure that Shareholders and potential investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders and potential investors to engage actively with
the Company.

In order to develop and maintain a continuing Shareholders and
investors’ relationship programme, the Company has established
various channels of communication with Shareholders and potential
investors including but not limited to (i) the annual general meeting
which provides a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board directly; (ii) printed copies of
corporate communication required under the Listing Rules; and
(iii) updated and key information about the Group as well as
information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange are all
made available on the Company’s website.

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders

and potential investors, and will regularly review the Shareholders’
Communication Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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Communication with Shareholders — continued

During the Year, the Company held an annual general meeting on
23 August 2012 and the attendance record of the Directors is set
out in the table below:

BRRzZBE-&

RAFERN  RARRZT—Z_FNAZ+=AK
17 —RBERBFARE TR EF 2R

Number of General Meetings Attended/
Number of General Meetings Held

Name of Directors EEEB HERERE BRRERAESETRE
Executive Directors BITEE

Mr. Pan Sutong EERLAE 1”1
Professor Huang Xiaojian* mE R 1”1
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun FREE LA 171
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TEREE 171
Mr. Li Huamao FERL KL 171
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin HERSLE 1”1
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey FHERE 171
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITESE

Mr. Lai Chi Kin RAEBSLE 71
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXHE+ 171
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BPABLE 1 1”1

*  Resigned as Executive Director on 29 November 2012
Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also
about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate
culture. We will continue to review and, where appropriate,
improve our current practices on the basis of our experience,
regulatory changes and developments. We welcome any views or
suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve the
Company’s transparency.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong, aged 50, is the founder of the Group. Mr.
Pan is a controlling shareholder, the Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer, an Executive Director, the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pan
is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group. Mr.
Pan has accumulated extensive experience in finance and property
development in Hong Kong and the RPC over the years. Mr. Pan
is also a controlling shareholder, the chairman of the board of
directors and a non-executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530).

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, aged 39, joined the Group in 2006 as General
Manager of China Division, oversees the Group’s China businesses.
Mr. Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in April 2008. Mr. Zhou is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou acted as legal
counsel and held senior management posts in various corporations
in the PRC, Hong Kong and Singapore. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Dalian Maritime University with a bachelor degree in International
Maritime Law. Mr. Zhou has accumulated extensive experience in
corporate administration, finance, legal, international trade and
public relations.

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond, aged 54, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Ting is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Ting is a registered
architect of the State of California, the United States and the
Architects Registration Board of Hong Kong. Mr. Ting obtained a
bachelor degree in Science (Architecture) and Architecture from the
University of Southern California, and is a member of the American
Institute of Architects, the National Council of Architectural
Registration Board, the United States and the Hong Kong Institute
of Architect. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ting was a director of
P&T Group Limited. Mr. Ting has over 29 years of experience in
architecture, and in the management and co-ordination of a variety
of projects in South East Asian region, especially Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan.
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Executive Directors — continued

Mr. Li Huamao, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in August 2010. Mr. Li graduated from the
business faculty of Tianjin University with a bachelor degree in
Construction Management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was
a director of Tianjin Hi-Tech Development Company Limited, a
company listed in the PRC. Mr. Li was also a general manager of
Tianjin Hi-Tech Property Development Company Limited and a
general manager of the operating department of Tianjin Hi-Tech
Holding Group Company Limited. Mr. Li has accumulated extensive
management experience in the development and investment in real
estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin, aged 39, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in August 2010. Mr. Wong
joined the Company in 2008 and is a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company and also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is the general counsel of
the Company and responsible for overseeing the Group's legal
and corporate matters. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in
Laws from The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong and in
England and Wales. Mr. Wong is also an executive director and
general counsel of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530). Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Wong was a special counsel of Baker & McKenzie
specializing in real estate mergers and acquisitions, corporate joint
ventures and public corporate compliance matters.
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Executive Directors — continued

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey, aged 47, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in March 2011. Mr. Lee is the
vice chairman of Goldin Real Estate Financial Holdings Limited,
the ultimate holding company of the Company. He is responsible
for overseeing corporate communications, investor relations
and fund raising activities of the Company. Mr. Lee is also an
executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530). Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Lee was a managing director of Goldman Sachs (Asia)
LLC. He has over 21 years of experience in investment banking
and served as department head of various functions including debt
capital markets, fixed income derivative structuring/marketing and
China private wealth management. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor degree
in Economics from University of California at Berkeley and a master
degree in Business Administration from Harvard University.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, aged 77, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2002. Mr. Lai is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Lai is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, and has extensive
experience in accounting and auditing sectors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors — continued

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, aged 48, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2004 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. Ng has more than 21 years of experience in
professional accounting and corporate finance in Hong Kong, the
PRC, the United States and Europe. Dr. Ng is a practicing certified
public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, and
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Dr. Ng received her Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Juris Doctor Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Master of Laws Degree in Corporate and Financial Laws from The
University of Hong Kong, Master of Business Administration Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Master of Professional
Accounting Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
Master of Science in Global Finance from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and Leonard N. Stern School of Business
of New York University. Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-
executive director of Cheong Ming Investments Limited (Stock
Code: 1196), eSun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 571) and
1010 Printing Group Limited (Stock Code: 1127), all being listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2004 and
is @ member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng
obtained a Doctor of Science Degree from the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, the United States and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada. Dr. Cheng had held management positions in various
technology companies, and was in charge of funding technology
companies when he was with the Government of Hong Kong. Dr.
Cheng is currently engaged in environmental protection projects.

Senior Management

The abovementioned Executive Directors of the Company are
members of senior management of the Group.
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The board of directors (“Board” or “Directors”) of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2013 (the “Year").

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Company
and the Group during the Year are shown in Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements and consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements of property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the Year are shown in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Ponies

Movements of ponies during the Year are shown in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties
Movements of investment properties during the Year are shown in

Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 171.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Huang Xiaojian (resigned on 29 November 2012)
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond

Mr. Li Huamao

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Kin

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai

Pursuant to article 105 of the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles”), Mr. Pan Sutong, Mr. Lai Chi Kin and Dr. Cheng
Kwan Wai will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM") by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The term of office of each Director, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INEDs"), is for a period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2013, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Interests in shares

Directors’ Report = £ & R &

A4

g

B

EEREETHRAR
R EEE 2 R R

RIZB—=F=ZA=+—HB  ARAEENKSTT
BABRAR R SE AR EE (E& R E5 RS
EiRGI(TRFRAEMRG])FEXVER) ML - 107
Mty R EREE P HE RIRE S LA EEPIEXVELSE
TR EDREMB AR B MBI R TOA R (B
EIREREFSF MG IGH) 2 2 F R RR A
RERZEZIAR) » LRENARBIZE SN
EIRHIFE3S2RAEF 2 ERMANERIORE © 3L
RELHETAESETERR S ZFETAUR
R ) AMGARNNR MR ERSOARAT

=

4

(@) R zER

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Name of Director/ Long position/ Number of share capital
chief executive short position Capacity shares held of the Company
EARDRE BT
B BETBABH®S BR/ KR 54 BERGHBE REAZBHNBEDL
(Note 1)
(Btat1)
Mr. Pan Sutong Long position Interests held as beneficial 2,292,202,998 64.28%
owner and through (Note 2)
controlled corporations
EERESTE A ERBHER ARBXIE (Mf&t2)
EERA 2 R
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun Long position Beneficial owner 280,000 0.01%
AT k& A BmlEAA
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond Long position Beneficial owner 900,000 0.03%
TEREE A BmBEAA
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%

mERKL R BEmBBA
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Directors’ Report = £ & 3 &

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

— continued

(b) Interests in underlying shares

(i) Asat 31 March 2013, there were share options held by the
Directors. Details of such options are set out in the section
headed “Share Options” of this Directors’ report.

(i) Interests in convertible bonds due on 21 January 2014.

EERBESTHRAERKRMD - HER
REEE2EER AR &

(b) AMEBEIRMD 2 s
() RZE—=F=A=+—RH EFFEE
Hxﬁ% B %! %Hx EZETBRHNAES
omE R —&

iy RZE—UF—A=-+—HRHzTH
&S s -

Approximate
percentage

Number of of the issued

Name of Director/  Long position/ underlying share capital

chief executive short position  Capacity shares held of the Company

B BETH FEHE EARDRE BT

PN=L HR/ KR %) ROBE REZBHEIL

(Note 1)

(K1)

Mr. Pan Sutong Long position Interests held through 18,750,000 0.53%
controlled corporations (Note 3)
ERRRSTAE e M AR A 2 Ean (H123)

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Long position Beneficial owner 343,750 0.01%
Edmond (Note 4)
TEREE e BmlEAA (Bizt4)

Mr. Wong Hau Yan,  Long position Beneficial owner 87,500 0.002%
Helvin (Note 5)
|mERSEE HE BmlEA A (Biz5)
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
— continued

Notes:

1. Asat 31 March 2013, the total number of ordinary shares of the Company
in issue was 3,566,082,188 shares.

2. Asat 31 March 2013, 164,691,571 shares were held by Mr. Pan
Sutong (“Mr. Pan”) in his personal capacity, 2,011,741,427 shares
were held by Goldin Group (Investment) Limited (“Goldin Group
(Investment)”), the immediate holding company of the Company
and 115,770,000 shares were held by Clear Jade International Limited
(“Clear Jade”). Clear Jade was 100% owned by Mr. Pan and Goldin
Group (Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial
Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, which in turn was 100% owned by
Mr. Pan. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in 2,011,741,427
shares held by Goldin Group (Investment) and 115,770,000 shares held by
Clear Jade. Goldin Group (Investment), being a holding company of the
Company, is also an associated corporation of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

3. As at 31 March 2013, Matsunichi Goldbase Global (Management) Limited
("Matsunichi Goldbase Global”) held the convertible bonds with nominal
value of HK$90,000,000. Upon full conversion of the convertible bonds
at the conversion price of HK$4.80 per share (as adjusted on 20 July
2011), 18,750,000 shares will be issued to Matsunichi Goldbase Global.
Matsunichi Goldbase Global was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Goldin
Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 530) (“GFHL") and Mr. Pan was
also a non-executive director, the chairman of the board of directors and
the controlling shareholder of GFHL. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to
be interested in the convertible bonds held by Matsunichi Goldbase Global.

4. As at 31 March 2013, Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond held the convertible
bonds with a nominal value of HK$1,650,000. Upon full conversion of the
convertible bonds at the conversion price of HK$4.80 per share (as adjusted
on 20 July 2011), 343,750 shares will be issued to Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan,
Edmond.

5. Asat 31 March 2013, Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin held the convertible
bonds with a nominal value of HK$420,000. Upon full conversion of the
convertible bonds at the conversion price of HK$4.80 per share (as adjusted
on 20 July 2011), 87,500 shares will be issued to Mr. Wong Hau Yan,
Helvin.
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BRRF([BR]) G - BREEFELEEAF100% =
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Directors’ Report = £ & 3 &

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
— continued

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had, as at 31 March 2013, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders under SFO

As at 31 March 2013, the substantial shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EERBESTHRAERKRMD - HER
IREERE2EZERAE &

B EXPRIEEN  R-FB—=F=A=+—H"
ARREEFTHARDITHABBERARRHEE
M EEOER (E&E R ESF LB GDIEXVED) B
0 AR RIEEE T HERIEE S LR
EXVEIET7RFESD BAME AR R MBS
FRE (BREREREES RREGD 2 ZFHFH
BRABASEANEDIOAR) - LRHENARFIZ
EH B GDIFE3S2HFBEET 2 B MAm R
KA BARBIRET ARG AR E B FTRE
HIKR °

BERSEMERIATHREZEE
RERERRAR

RIZ—=F=A=+—8 RARERNHKHEH
Mty b BB IRIEE 5 M A B IR DI EX VAL B2 R E 3D
BBV IERSURMA R R BE R E N AN R AR RE 5 R
HIE&HIFE3361RAE T2 BRMANERIAR Z
FERR(ARREEFIHZESTHABRINGT

Approximate
percentage of
the issued

Long position/ Number of  share capital of

Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held the Company
LER NG|

ERITREZ

REAB HRERE 54 BERGHE BHBED T
(Note 1)

(Btt1)

Goldin Group (Investment) (Note 2)  Long position Beneficial owner 2,011,741,427 56.41%

SIREBMORE) (H172) LSy

10)
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Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders under SFO — continued

Notes:

1. Asat 31 March 2013, the total number of ordinary shares of the Company
in issue was 3,566,082,188 shares.

2. Asat 31 March 2013, Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by
Goldin Real Estate Financial, which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Options

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 27 August
2002 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) was terminated by
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 23 August 2012
("AGM") before its expiration on 26 August 2012. At the AGM, the
Shareholders have approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme of the Company (the “New Share Option Scheme”) in
substantially similar terms as those of the Old Share Option Scheme.

Following the Old Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant
options as incentives to any participants as described in the New
Share Option Scheme for the shares in the Company within a
period of ten years commencing from 23 August 2012 at the price
determined by the Directors. Such price shall not be lower than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the average of the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company on the date of adopting the New Share
Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is valid for a period
of 10 years from 23 August 2012.

During the Year, no share options were granted to any participants
under the New Share Option Scheme.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

Directors’ Report = £ & R &

REFESRBAE
Hﬁi*&éﬁ\;ﬁﬁ — =

BIFE

s

I BEFHRBEZEE

i

1. RIZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—H FARAEBTETERESS
3,566,082, 1887 ©

2. RIF—=F=A=+—H =REEERE H=ReH
HEHEAF100% - =ik iR mELEHAE100% °

B EXFREEIN  W_E—=%F=A=+—8"
BEAMAL(RRARESRERITRABRIINZ
MERRREERBEFSFLEEEOIEXVIBE2 R
FIDWZEARAR BB H AR R E
F MHEEAIE3361&78E T 2 B MAnARER
DB Z ST E -

B

RARRZZE-FN\A -+ BRANERE
AE((EBRESEDEREE-_T——F )\
“tHRBERAAAARRR(RR DR -T2
FNAZT=ZARTNARABRRBFERES (KRR
BEKRE)) LRLE -RERBFAEEL  BREM
AR BRI R E R R A BUE R R
FTBRHERT 8 ([ FAB RSB ) -

RIBFEBRETS  Ea_——_F/\A
—t+=REs+FHRERRFERETEEE 2T
M2EERLEREFEARE  WEEZET2E
HRRBEBARRRKG - ZBRIBENATZEZER
BE ()VAARBRMOARH A BER R 2 WHE
(IVARFIROAREEERE N B AERS BEBR
Frz FHWTHE ; RGiDARBIRMGEE - RIBEFE
TR IR 2 ERES R 2RO R HE TS
BB MNZ IR ERT B BB 2 AR R GD B
Z210% ° FiERETE 2B HA - ——F/)\A
Z+=HBAH0F -

RAFER - BERREDRIENBRET SR T
(ECIES g

SERMEERAR AR F3) 2013



Directors’ Report = £ & 3 &

Share Options — continued BRE-&
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options TR BEE E AFEERNARRQ TR EEBIE I
movements under the Old Share Option Scheme during the Year: BRSBTS
() Directors i E=
Number of share options
BREHE
Redlassified
from
Exercise “Directors” to Granted Exercised Lapsed
price per Outstanding “Other during during during  Outstanding
Name of Director Date of grant share  Exercisable period at1.4.2012  participants” the Year the Year the Year  at31.3.2013
R-E--f flEE] W-E-=F
MA-H BH5ER REEER REEER WEEER  ZA=t-B
£33 RiLAH BRRE THH HATE [HtSEE] 2R B2k BAX HRITE
HK$ (Note 2)
BT (Hrit2)
(Note 1)
(Hrit1)
Professor Huang Xiaojian 3.8.2009 327 3.82011102.8.2019 181,636 (181,636) — — — —
(Note 2) 382011282019
SERUE ) 38.2009 327 382012t0282019 242,181 (242,181) — - - —
3.8.2012%2.8.2019
27.3.2012 269 27.9.20121026.3.2022 133,333 (133333) — — — —
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.12.20131026.3.2022 133,333 (133333) — — — —
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
2732012 269 27.3.20151026.3.2022 133,334 (133,334) — — — —
27.3.2015%26.3.2022

823,817 (823,817) — — — _

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun 3.8.2009 327 382010t02.8.2019 302,727 - — - — 302,727
AREEE 3.8.2010%£2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 382011t02.8.2019 302,727 — — - - 302,727
38.2011%£2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 382012t02.8.2019 403,636 - — - - 403,636
382012282019
2732012 269 279201210 26.3.2022 333333 - — - - 333333
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
2732012 269 27.12.2013 10 26.3.2022 333333 - — - - 333333
27.12.2013%263.2022
2732012 269 27.3.20151026.3.2022 333334 - — - - 333334
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,009,090 — — — — 2,009,090

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @ SIRMEREIRARAT FR 2013



Directors’ Report = £ & R &

Share Options — continued BRE-&
(i) Directors — continued iy E=2-8
Number of share options
BREXE
Redlassified
from
Exercise “Directors” to Granted Exercised Lapsed
price per Outstanding “Other during during during  Outstanding
Name of Director Date of grant share  Exercisable period at1.4.2012 participants” the Year the Year the Year  at31.3.2013
R=B-=f HIEE] R=B-=f%
mA-A BHAEE REFER REREER WREER  ZA=t-B
£33 R AH BRTRE  TKH HATE [HtSEE] BEE Bk BAX HRITE
HKS (Note 2)
BT (Hrt2)
(Note 1)
(Hrit1)
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, 3.8.2009 327 3.82011t02.8.2019 605,454 — — — — 605,454
Edmond 3.8.2011%2.8.2019
TEREE 3.8.2009 327 382012102.8.2019 807,272 - — - — 807,272
3.8.2012£2.8.2019
2732012 269 2792012 1026.3.2022 333,333 - — - — 333,333
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.12.201310 26.3.2022 333,333 - — - — 333,333
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 273201510 26.3.2022 333,334 - — - — 333,334
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,412,726 — — — — 2,412,726
Mr. Li Huamao 3.8.2009 327 382010t02.8.2019 302,727 - — - — 302,727
FEREE 3.8.2010£2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 382011102.8.2019 302,727 - — - - 302,727
3.8.2011%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 382012t0282019 403,636 - — - - 403,636
3.8.201222.8.2019
27.3.2012 269 27.9.2012 10 26.3.2022 333,333 - — - — 333,333
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
2732012 269 27.12.20131026.3.2022 333,333 - — - - 333,333
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.3.20151026.3.2022 333,334 — — — — 333,334
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,009,090 - — - - 2,009,090
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Share Options - continued

() Directors — continued

BRE-&
() EE-&

Number of share options
BREHE
Redlassified
from
Exercise “Directors” to Granted Exercised Lapsed
price per Outstanding "Other during during during  Outstanding
Name of Director Date of grant share  Exercisable period at1.4.2012  participants” the Year the Year the Year  at31.3.2013
R=B-=f HIEE] R=B-=f%
mA-A B8R REFER REREER WEEER  ZA=t-B
£33 RiLAH BRRE THH HATE [HtSEE] 2R Bk BAX HRITE
HK$ (Note 2)
BT (Hrt2)
(Note 1)
(Hrit1)
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin 3.8.2009 327 3.82010t02.8.2019 216,127 — — — — 216,127
BERAE 3.8.2010%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 382011102.8.2019 363,272 - — - - 363,272
3.8.2011%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 382012102.8.2019 484,363 - — - — 484,363
3.8.2012%2.8.2019
27.3.2012 269 27.9.2012t0263.2022 333,333 - — - — 333333
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.12.2013t026.3.2022 333,333 - — - - 333,333
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
2732012 269 273201510 26.3.2022 333,334 - — - — 333,334
273.2015%26.3.2022
2,063,762 — — - — 2,063,762
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey 27.32012 269 27.9.2012 10 26.3.2022 666,666 - — - - 666,666
FEBEE 27.9.2012%26.3.2022
2732012 269 27.12.20131026.3.2022 666,666 — — — — 666,666
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 269 27.3.20151026.3.2022 666,668 - — - - 666,668
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,000,000 - — - — 2,000,000
11,318,485 (823,817) — - - 10,494,668
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BRE-&
(i) BE(EERM)

Share Options - continued

(i) Employees (other than Directors)

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding during during during Outstanding
Date of grant per share  Exercisable period at 1.4.2012 the Year the Year the Year at31.3.2013
R-Z—=F R-Z—=F
mA—H REAFER REFER REFEER =A=+-A8
BB BRiTEE 7D o RATHE 28 [5x4 BAY 8 RATHE
HK$
BT
(Note 1)
(Mfst1)
5.2.2004 1.19  5.2.20051t04.2.2014 678,745 — — — 678,745
5.2.2005%4.2.2014
20.4.2004 1.41 20.4.2004 to 19.4.2014 572,945 — — — 572,945
20.4.2004%19.4.2014
28.9.2005 1.31 28.9.2005 to0 27.9.2015 1,433,968 — (1,432,000) — 1,968
28.9.2005%27.9.2015
27.11.2007 6.50  27.11.2007 to 26.11.2017 8,072,727 — — — 8,072,727
27.11.2007%26.11.2017
3.8.2009 3.27 3.8.2010t02.8.2019 1,286,949 — (45,409) (21,190) 1,220,350
3.8.2010%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 3.8.2011102.8.2019 2,122,110 — (139,252) (45,408) 1,937,450
3.8.2011%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 3.27 3.8.2012102.8.2019 2,829,517 — (171,609) (60,546) 2,597,362
3.8.2012%2.8.2019
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 3.14  21.4.2011t0 20.4.2020 1,567,676 — (254,286) (24,217) 1,289,173
(Hr:23) 21.4.2011%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 3.14  21.4.2012 t0 20.4.2020 4,462,178 — (251,560) (2,896,797) 1,313,821
(H1it3) 21.4.2012%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 3.14  21.4.2013t020.4.2020 5,949,669 — — (4,060,626) 1,889,043
(Kiat3) 21.4.2013%20.4.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 3) 3.72 10.8.2011 t0 9.8.2020 481,333 — (9,081) (105,954) 366,298
(H1i23) 10.8.2011%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 3) 3.72 10.8.2012 t0 9.8.2020 956,614 — (9,081) (581,235) 366,298
(H1it3) 10.8.2012%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 3) 3.72 10.8.2013 t0 9.8.2020 1,275,499 — — (774,989) 500,510
(Kiat3) 10.8.2013%9.8.2020
27.3.2012 2.69  27.9.2012 t0 26.3.2022 8,259,976 — — (533,332) 7,726,644
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69 27.12.2013 t0 26.3.2022 8,259,976 — — (533,332) 7,726,644
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69  27.3.20151t0 26.3.2022 8,260,048 — — (533,336) 7,726,712
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
56,469,930 — (2,312,278)  (10,170,962) 43,986,690
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Share Options - continued

(iii) Other participants

BRE-&

(i) Eth2eaE

Number of share options

BREHE

Reclassified
from
"“Directors”

Exercise to Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding “Other during during during Outstanding
Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2012 participants” the Year the Year the Year at31.3.2013
R-B--F HrEE] R-B-=%
mA-H ENSEE REAFER REAFEAR REEER =ZA=+-H
Riti A8 BRTEE TEH WARITE [HitpRE] BEH =50 2AM i RATEE
HK$ (Note 2)
BT (Hizt2)
(Note 1)
(Biit1)
5.2.2004 1.19  52.20051t04.2.2014 2,682,037 — — — — 2,682,037
5.2.2005%4.2.2014
20.4.2004 141  20.4.2004 to0 19.4.2014 371,037 — — — — 371,037
20.4.2004%19.4.2014
3.8.2009 327 3.8.2010t02.8.2019 2,123,305 — — — — 2,123,305
3.8.2010%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 3.8.2011102.8.2019 2,225,041 181,636 — (60,545) — 2,346,132
3.8.2011%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 3.27 3.8.2012t02.8.2019 2,966,728 242,181 — (80,727) — 3,128,182
3.8.2012%2.8.2019
21.4.2010 3.14  21.4.2011 t0 20.4.2020 3,453,014 — — (27,213) (15,136) 3,410,665
21.4.2011%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 314 21.4.2012 t0 20.4.2020 3,590,314 — — — (15,136) 3,575,178
21.4.2012%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 3.14  21.4.2013 t0 20.4.2020 4,787,166 — — — (20,182) 4,766,984
21.4.2013%20.4.2020
10.8.2010 3.72  10.8.2011t0 9.8.2020 605,454 — — — — 605,454
10.8.2011%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 372 10.8.2012 t09.8.2020 605,454 — — — — 605,454
10.8.2012%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 3.72  10.8.2013 t0 9.8.2020 807,273 — — — — 807,273
10.8.2013%9.8.2020
27.3.2012 2.69  27.9.2012 to 26.3.2022 10,033,322 133,333 — — (16,666) 10,149,989
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69  27.12.2013 10 26.3.2022 10,033,322 133,333 — — (16,666) 10,149,989
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69  27.3.2015 t0 26.3.2022 10,033,356 133,334 — — (16,668) 10,150,022
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
54,316,823 823,817 — (168,485) (100,454) 54,871,701
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Share Options - continued

(iii) Other participants — continued
Notes:

1. The exercise prices and the number of share options granted on 5
February 2004, 20 April 2004, 28 September 2005, 27 November
2007, 3 August 2009, 21 April 2010 and 10 August 2010 under the
Old Share Option Scheme had been adjusted upon the rights issue,
as announced by the Company on 16 February 2012, becoming
unconditional on 20 March 2012. Details of which were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 23 March 2012.

2. Professor Huang Xiaojian had resigned as executive Director on 29
November 2012. Therefore, share options held by Professor Huang
Xiaojian were re-classified from the category of “Directors” to “Other
participants” on the same date.

3. Share options granted on 21 April 2010 and 10 August 2010 were
conditionally granted to the employees (other than Directors) of the
Company, subject to the achievement of the performance targets as
determined by the Board.

The vesting period of the share options under the Old Share Option
Scheme is from the date of grant until the commencement of the
exercisable period.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$4.6 per share.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” and “Share Options” above, at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its
holding companies a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

During the Year, the Group had transactions with related companies
in which a Director has controlling interests, details of which are set
out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of
the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

@
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Directors’ Report = £ & 3 &

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2013, none of the Directors are considered to be in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted the New Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme
are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the
Group'’s five largest customers represented approximately 74%
of the Group’s revenue for the Year. The aggregate amount of
revenue for the Year attributable to the Group’s largest customer
for the Year was 29%.

For the Year, the aggregate amount of construction costs
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented
approximately 81% of the Group's total construction costs for the
Year. The aggregate amount of construction costs for the Year
attributable to the Group's largest supplier for the Year was 49%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, has interests in these customers and
suppliers during the Year.
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Connected Transactions

)

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

On 13 December 2012, Tianjin Goldin International Club
Company Limited (“Tianjin Goldin"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a purchase agreement
(the "Purchase Agreement”) with Matsunichi Digital
Development (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (“Matsunichi
Digital”), pursuant to which Matsunichi Digital agreed to sell
and Tianjin Goldin agreed to purchase 2,000 units of the smart
phones inclusive of accessories (the “Smart Phone Products”)
at a total consideration of approximately HK$9.3 million (the
“Consideration”). The Smart Phone Products are mainly used
for the operation of Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club.

As Mr. Pan is a controlling shareholder, the chairman of the
Board, chief executive officer and an executive director of
the Company and he beneficially owns the entire interests
in Matsunichi Digital, Mr. Pan is a connected person of the
Company and Matsunichi Digital is an associate of Mr. Pan
and is therefore an associate of a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the purchase of the Smart Phone
Products by Tianjin Goldin from Matsunichi Digital constitutes
a connected transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules.

Details of the above connected transaction were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 13 December 2012.

During the Year, the Group purchased the Smart Phone
Products from Matsunichi Digital at the amount of
approximately HK$1,863,000. Details of which is set out in
Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

for identification purposes only

On 22 February 2013, the Company and Mr. Pan entered into
a joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”) in respect
of the formation of a joint venture entity, which is 60% and
40% held by the Company and Mr. Pan or through their
respective affiliates respectively, to facilitate the acquisition and
development of any parcel or parcels of land situated in Hong
Kong and Shenzhen, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai of the PRC,
with the total estimated land costs of not more than HK$15
billion. The joint venture formation would enable the Group
to share the potential profit upon completion of the land
development and enjoy a greater financial flexibility during the
long-term development projects.

As stated in item (1) above, Mr. Pan is a connected person
of the Company and therefore the entering into of the
JV Agreement constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the above connected transaction were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 22 February 2013.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 18 May 2012, the Company and GFHL entered into a
framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) which
sets out the principal framework upon which the GFHL and its
subsidiaries (the “GFHL Group”) will sell and the Group will
purchase the wine products (including all bottles of wines, alcoholic
liquors, spirits and/or other liquors fit and intended for consumption
as beverage to be transacted between the GFHL Group and the
Group under the Framework Agreement) (the “Wine Products”)
for a term commencing from 18 May 2012 and ending on 31
March 2015.

The annual caps of the Company for the period from 18 May 2012
to 31 March 2013 and the two financial years ending 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2015 are HK$9.58 million, HK$11 million and
HK$11 million respectively.

During the Year, GFHL Group sold and the Group purchased the
Wine Products at the amount of approximately HK$7,865,000.
Details of which is set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As Mr. Pan (personally and through his wholly-owned companies)
was beneficially interested in approximately 64.21% and 70.26%
of each of the issued share capital of the Company and GFHL
respectively as at 18 May 2012, the Group is an associate of a
connected person of GFHL and the GFHL Group is also an associate
of a connected person of the Company. As such, the Company
and GFHL are connected persons of each other under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the respective sales and purchases of the Wine
Products by the GFHL Group and the Group constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 18 May 2012.
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Continuing Connected Transactions — continued

Pursuant to rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above have been reviewed by
the INEDs who have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions in accordance with rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group
in the normal course of business are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions
which constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are set out in the
sections headed “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, have complied with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the Year and up to the date of this report.

Management Contract

No contract for management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company was entered
into or existed during the Year.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. Information on the work
of the Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire at the
conclusion of the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Pan Sutong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
45

e

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to
170, which comprise the Group’s consolidated and the Company's
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal controls as
the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 3 #% S Al 3k &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2013 and of the Group'’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e HEWEBRE

For the year ended 31 March 2013 &2 —ZF—=F=A=+—HLFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
P FHET FAET
Revenue 0 7 128,976 57,079
Cost of sales SHEE BN (70,824) (38,424)
Gross profit EF 58,152 18,655
Other income E A YA 9 15,703 8,814
Marketing costs M5 &R A (69,216) (30,714)
Hotel and polo club other operating BTE & BERE H 4T
expenses X (236,926) (157,549)
Administrative expenses T EH (309,142) (251,161)
Foreign exchange (losses) gains, net HNGE (518 ) W as ) F 58 (11,255) 189,360
Finance costs W 5% A 11 (25,197) (252,858)
Increase in fair value of REMFEZ N THE
investment properties 9N 19 855,332 69,489
Gains on derivatives PTETHZ W 12 4,350 873,052
Profit before tax MR F A A 13 281,801 467,088
Income tax expense 8RB 14 (213,833) (17,372)
Profit for the year attributable to ViN/NET 2 =N )
owners of the Company EFE S F| 67,968 449,716
Other comprehensive income Hitt 2wk
Exchange difference arising on WEIGINETGFTEE
translation PEH Z=%8 203,056 217,920
Other comprehensive income REFEE M 2E
for the year =5 203,056 217,920
Total comprehensive income RNATGER AEL
for the year attributable to FEEENEERE
owners of the Company 271,024 667,636
Earnings (loss) per share BRER (&) 16
— basic —EK 1.91 HK cents 33.25 HK cents
19184 33.25% L
— diluted — s 1.81 HK cents  (13.23) HK cents
1.81584L (13.23)74 1L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
rE BB RERR

At 31 March 2013 R=ZE—=F=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=fF —T——F
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT FHET FABT
Non-current assets EmBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BRE KA 17 2,900,937 2,927,845
Ponies BT 18 50,864 60,393
Investment properties LEME 19 10,690,129 8,087,981
Other assets Hib&E 20 358,091 353,137
Prepaid lease payments TEIEERIE 21 251,861 254,685
Intangible assets BIVEE 22 90 90
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE BEK
property, plant and equipment Rz ENES 23 7,223 36,923
14,259,195 11,721,054
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 24 68,747 73,856
Properties under development for sale  ZEEFRFEYE 26 7,322,431 4,672,650
Prepaid lease payments TEEERIE 21 6,396 6,308
Trade and other receivables, JEUBR 2R B Eo At fE L
prepayments and deposits FIE - BARERES 27 268,343 207,200
Amount due from a related company U —FRIREE A B FIE 28 864 =
Cash and cash equivalents e NIESZEEY 30 1,341,536 1,540,129
9,008,317 6,500,143
Current liabilities nEBEE
Trade and other payables FEAS BR R A FE AT 5RIE 31 3,785,544 2,093,156
Amounts due to related companies FETERE A B2k 32 12,882 92,083
Tax payable FESHFRIE 29,917 29,688
Bank borrowing RITHEK 33 42,208 -
Obligations under finance leases BB EED
— amount due within one year — —F AN EAFRIE 34 72 81
Convertible bonds (including AR ES (B FEH R
conversion option derivatives) HiEESTA T R) 35 226,153 66,526
4,096,776 2,281,534
Net current assets mEBEERE 4,911,541 4,218,609
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRREERE 19,170,736 15,939,663
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %= & B 7% ik % ¥R 3=

At 31 March 2013 R=—ZE—=F=H=+—H

2013 2012
—EB-=F —T——F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FH&xT T
Non-current liabilities FEREFEE
Bank borrowing RITIER 33 295,454 -
Obligations under finance leases AR EER
— amount due after one year — —F1& 5| HiF0E 34 330 201
Convertible bonds (including AR ES (B FE AR
conversion option derivatives) HREPTAET R) 35 - 213,655
Loan from a shareholder IR E 36 2,568,966 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEEE 37 1,144,872 918,159
4,009,622 1,132,015
15,161,114 14,807,648
Capital and reserves PR R & 1R
Share capital A% 38 178,304 178,073
Reserves B 39 14,982,810 14,629,575
Total equity T /ERE 15,161,114 14,807,648

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 170 were HHWES5EZ170B 2 G MBHMER - —=4&
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 <A +HBEZEESHERBEEAH - WH TS

June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: EERKREF
Pan Sutong Zhou Xiaojun
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF BE
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Statement of Financial Position

B BE AR R 2R

At 31 March 2013 R=ZE—=F=A=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
NOTES K$'000 K$'000
B3 FHExT BT
Non-current assets B EE
Property, plant and equipment M -~ RE KR 17 737 -
Intangible assets B EE 22 920 90
Investments in subsidiaries HEBAREE 25 2,366,346 2,443,997
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULFT B A B FIE 29 10,875,489 9,942,770
13,242,662 12,386,857
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables, prepayments and Hip el FIE - FENFIE R
deposits bioe 66 117
Cash and cash equivalents He NIREEEY 30 1,416 16,495
1,482 16,612
Current liabilities mENaE
Other payables H A & 38 31 3,485 1,623
Amounts due to related companies JESREE A RFRIE 32 11,019 92,083
Convertible bonds (including AR E A (BIE R iR
conversion option derivatives) BRMESTAET A) 35 226,153 66,526
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A B3 29 140,617 129,884
Tax payable FES T IB 1,939 1,982
383,213 292,098
Net current liabilities mEAaEEE (381,731) (275,486)
Total assets less current liabilities BEREBERRDEE 12,860,931 12,111,371
Non-current liabilities ERIEE
Convertible bonds (including AR E S (BIEH iR
conversion option derivatives) HARESTAT A) 35 - 213,655
Loan from a shareholder RERE R 36 1,157,307 =
1,157,307 213,655
11,703,624 11,897,716
Capital and reserves AR R (b s
Share capital ik 38 178,304 178,073
Reserves B 39 11,525,320 11,719,643
Total equity 4B 11,703,624 11,897,716

Pan Sutong
DIRECTOR
EF

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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Zhou Xiaojun
BRE
DIRECTOR
BF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREEBRR

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZ=FT—=F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREHEAELR
Share-based Equity Capital
Share Share compensation  Translation participants redemption  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ki BA A&

A RBEE  HeRE  ARRRE SEARE  RERR  RERH &3t
HK$000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TETL TEL T TEL THL TEL TEL TEL

(Note 39)
(R3#39)

At 1 April 2011 R=E—4EA-A 61,748 3,022,067 90,031 588,432 (180,932) 173 2,714,114 6,295,633
Profit for the year RERRT = - - - - - 449,716 449,716
Exchange difference arising on translation T E/SS EBFELER 28 - - - 217,920 - - - 217,920
Total comprehensive income for the year AN 2 M 445 - - - 217,920 - = 449716 667,636
Recognition of equity-settled EANBAEER AR A

share-based payments N ANE - - 29,135 - - - - 29,135
Exercise of share options TERBRE 10 1,058 (430) = = = = 638
Lapse of share options BIREAW - - (2952 - = = 2,952 =
Conversion of convertible bonds HRnRRES 67,736 5704510 - - 188,624 - (188,624) 5,772,246
Issue of new shares upon placementof  EEERAZITHRG

shares 11,800 474,360 - - - - - 486,160
Transaction costs directly attributable RAEERHETIRAT

to issue of new shares upon EREEZRHNA

placement of shares - (4.862) - - - - - (4.862)
Issue of new shares upon rights issue RERZTHRA 36,779 1,552,088 - - - - - 1588867
Transaction costs directly attributable to ~ RERE(THRAMEE

issue of new shares upon rights issue ~~~ E&EZ R B - (27,809) - - - - - (27,809)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—F=f=1-H 178,073 10,721,416 115,784 806,352 7,692 173 2.978,158 14,807,648
Profit for the year REE&T - - - - - - 67,968 67,968
Exchange difference arising on translation T E/SS £ EHELER 25 - - - 203,056 - - = 203,056
Total comprehensive income for the year AV 2 FMa 4458 - = - 203,05 = = 67,968 271,024
Recognition of equity-settled BEANRAEERARD A

share-based payments ENANE - - 67,767 - - - - 67,767
Exercise of share options TR RE 124 8,010 (2,892 - - - - 5,242
Lapse of share options BRI = = (8,095) = = = 8,095 =
Conversion of convertible bonds HRnRRES 107 9,326 - - 1,064 - (1,004) 9,433
Redemption of convertible bonds BEAARES - - - - 7,186 - (7,186) -
At 31 March 2013 R-E-=£=f=1-H 178,304 10,738,752 172,564 1,009,408 15,942 173 3,045,971 15,161,114
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AeREREREK

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & &2 —ZF—=F=A=+—HLFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FHIT
Operating activities &R
Profit before tax B BT 281,801 467,088
Adjustments for: Ve AR
Increase in fair value of investment properties BEMEZ AN FEE N (855,332) (69,489)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - R MRETE 120,226 58,365
Depreciation of ponies BiE 9,279 4,181
Finance costs e 25,197 252,858
Gains on derivatives PTHETEZ W (4,350) (873,052)
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFEHA (3,103) (8,716)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BEIEREZ
equipment (Was ) E518 (117) 785
Written off of ponies S UTHf 84 1,314 =
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FAFH A E TR IE R 6,396 1,652
Share-based payments expenses AR AR 5k 2 B 67,767 29,135
Unrealised exchange difference NEATRE N R (2,706) (190,913)
Operating cash flows before KRt EECEEFI 2
movements in working capital RIS (353,628) (328,106)
Increase in properties under BERAPAESELN
development for sale (1,261,721) (1,176,060)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA(3E0) 7,804 (42,657)
Increase in trade and other receivables, JFEE U B R e L A WK I
prepayments and deposits TETFIE RIRE LN (58,592) (5,685)
Increase in amount due from a related company JiE U4y — el A 2 R B R IE A A (864) =
Increase in trade and other payables FERTBRE SR I B FE (< SR IEE A0 274,878 497,145
Net cash used in operating activities KRBT € F8 (1,392,123) (1,055,363)
Investing activities REES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEVME  BEKEE (24,508) (556,406)
Acquisition of ponies BEST (261) (47,767)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEWE BER&EZ
plant and equipment Bffike (2,219) (11,646)
Construction costs paid in respect of investment HERIREMEE N
properties under construction FEL RN (1,510,287) (686,976)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME  BRE KRE
plant and equipment FTS 308 235 -
Interest received on bank deposits RITIFE 2 BEHFILE 3,103 8,716
Net cash used in investing activities BB EEFTRE 3% (1,533,937) (1,294,079)

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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Consolidated Statementof CashFlows Zr 8 R € R E W &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Financing activities BMEEE

Interest and finance charges paid ERHE RIS E R (104,812) (502,374)

Repayments of obligations under BRMEREED

finance leases (153) (68)

New bank loan raised FTIBIRITE R 337,662 -

Redemption of convertible bonds BB TR E 5 (58,078) =

Proceeds from placement of shares B E R PSS RUA - 486,160

Share placement expenses Rin Bl &R - (4,862)

Proceeds from rights issue AR FTSFB - 1,588,867

Proceeds from issue of shares upon BT AR TR

exercise of share options FriSsOE 5,242 638

Repayment to a related company A —E &R RIER (27,805) (47,768)

Loan advanced from a shareholder e E - 4,098,150 -

Repayment of loan advanced from a shareholder BERRER (1,551,886) =
Net cash from financing activities BEES B4 FE 2,698,320 1,520,593
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R RREEEBMIMFE (227,740) (828,849)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FzRekREEED

of the year 1,540,129 2,287,706
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes YN SR S ) 7 B 29,147 81,272
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRZIBE NS EEY 1,341,536 1,540,129
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 = —=F=A=+—HItFE

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Goldin
Group (Investment) Limited (“Goldin Group (Investment)”),
a private limited company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, and its ultimate parent is Goldin Real Estate Financial
Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”), a private
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
which is ultimately owned by Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”), a
Director and Chairman of the Company, who has controlling
interest in the Company. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the “Corporate Information” included in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is different from the functional currency of
the Company, Renminbi (“RMB”), as the Company is a public
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on
the Stock Exchange, where most of its investors are located
and therefore, the Directors consider that Hong Kong dollars
is preferable in presenting the operating results and financial
position of the Company and the Group. The majority of the
Company'’s subsidiaries are operating in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC"”) with RMB as their functional currency.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2013 are set out in
note 46.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year 31 March 2013 &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRS(s) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"):

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Asset

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRS(s) in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group's financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets in the
current year. Under the amendments, investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in accordance
with HKAS 40 /nvestment Property are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of measuring
deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances.

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair
value model. As a result of the application of the amendments
to HKAS 12, the Directors reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolio and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, the Directors have determined
that the “sale” presumption set out in the amendments to
HKAS 12 is rebutted. Deferred taxation in relation to the
investment properties is continued to be measured based on
the tax consequences of recovering through use. Hence, the
application of the amendments to HKAS 12 has no effect on
the Group's financial performance and financial positions for
the current and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=F=A=+—HItFE

FERFTR] RASIER] BB IR E %
AT EBMHHREER]) — &

B A8 1B [ R A 2 Ha] R AAERT %
A 52t
A B3 R IR P AR A T EBMIE MR ERZ

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial 2.
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(FRIC) — Int 20

28 woN =

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle?

Government Loans?

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures*

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance?

Investment Entities3

Financial Instruments#

Consolidated Financial
Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income’

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities3

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year 31 March 2013 &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle issued
in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include the amendments to
HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and the amendments
to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified as
property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition
of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory
otherwise. The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on
distributions to holders of an equity instrument and transaction
costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The Directors
anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=F=A=+—HItFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities and amendments to HKFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues
relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities
requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and
“simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement or
similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods
within those annual periods. The disclosures should also
be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with
retrospective application required.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities in the future.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @

FERFTR] RASIER] BB IR E %
AT EBMHHREER]) — &

E 28 018 5 R A U2 # AT RASMEFT 22
AIR2E - &
ERETTERAERR(BITR)EHERE
ERERAE IUREBMBHREENFTR
(BITR)RE-EHETRHEERTREE

FREEUFER(BRIN)ESEREHEE
REENGHABERECRAEMARE - A8
ME @ REFTANEBREREE S REHHITE
SHAER R [ R BEIR M5 |2 o

BEREVBRELEAET75EERTA) R E B RAR
BERA AT FREGEEAREREULH
TZerT A2 EEE AR LI (FnER m
BIRIRTE) 2 EHY o

BEEVBRELNERET RN _—FE—=F
—A—BARZEKFABZERERAREREFES
BAZ P EBRAR - ZEFWBENARAE A
LEEEARIE IR © AT - FAE G ERF32
FUERTA) R —ZE—F— A — A2 &A%
ZEEHREA TTIaER - BAEWER -

=R/ RARERATESFERFE325 (&
IR REBMBEREERER(BIIA)HE
ERERBHEMEERERABHFEHESZ R

3= o

SIRMEZERAR AR F3R 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year 31 March 2013 &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

e The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a
financial liability (designated as at fair value through profit
or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the changes in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=F=A=+—HItFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments - continued

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future will not have significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
based on the analysis of the Group'’s financial instruments as at
31 March 2013.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below:

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation —
“Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on
the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements.
In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets
and jointly controlled operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year 31 March 2013 &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HIFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures — continued

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
accounting.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than
those in the current standards.

These five standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied early at the
same time.

The Directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and will not have
significant impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @

FE RFTR] RASIER] BB IR 5%
A(TERMBREER]) - &

B S8 A 1B [ AR A 2 HR] R AE RT %
k2% - &

BHAS BMARY BWEATRRBEZH
AT RAEBTER — &

AN - REBAMBBELAE1R AL
EEARAEEREAR  MREEEGHE
AIE315 - ARZEHEETRAGEER
BELLPLIENER -

EEMGHmELERNFE 125 R —AWFELER - &
ARNEMBAR - Bakdk BEARR X
REHERERRARSCER - — KM=
BEMGHRELENE 12 FE 2 WERERER
TEAMREEEREME °

ZERBEENR T —=F—A —Hzlz%H
WM FEHREAN - YAeFER - HEZAR
ERIZARER R ER o

EXEY AEEHR T =FEOA—BH
M FEMRAZEAMBERRRNZENAE
A AR EHEEMBEREMERSBE
EEAFE -

SIRMEZERAR AR F1k 2013



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=F=A=+—HItFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception
to consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity,
except where the subsidiaries provide services that relate
to the investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required to
measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value through profit
or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be
met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

e obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of
providing them with professional investment management
services,

e commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to
invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income, or both; and

e measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of
its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have
been made to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with early application permitted. The Directors anticipate
that the application of the amendments will have no effect on
the Group as the Company is not an investment entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year 31 March 2013 &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the
current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS
7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning 1 April 2013 and that the application of the new
standard may affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year 31 March 2013 #EZ=F—

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2013. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income will be
modified accordingly when the amendments are applied in the
future accounting periods.
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For the year 31 March 2013 &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and by the Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, that are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=F=A=+—HItFE

Statements 4= & Bt 7% ¥ & Kt &

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payments arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the accounting
policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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For the year 31 March 2013 #E=ZF—

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Business combinations — continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,
when applicable, on the basis specified in another standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Business combinations — continued

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e., the date when the
Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
as described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
deprecated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @

FTESHEER - &

M=~ BERRE

mE - BERRE  RESEAREEENR
RSB RAF TR 2 2 (T XA T
RRIN B AR E LS 2 RaHiTE R R5HAME
FHR (A B AR ISR RBERAGR ©

WE - W R (FER TN IR EfhE
AERFHAKHBENSREER  AEHRE
WEEPATERITE - fhat AIERFH - FIERE
BERFETEENERENREEHN - BRAMG
IR ERARAEREEAS

EREREMMEEE - HESETHAZRZYME
BRAREEAEHERBEBRAR - KAE
EREXBANGLAEREEM S ) REAKE
SR BREMNMEZEERA - BRAMERTK
LA REREREHEERIBR/EE ZWE
B MR - REEERE A BIERER
B REE MY REERRZ EEFRIGET
Z o

REREVEREZEENE MG A ERFH
REGEEEMARCEEFENE - A &
BAREEMENRAEMETE - MEER
UEAEMERERFNMEPRRENE

WE - BB MR S R SR TR EI R R
BETHGRARLEMEFEOETER B
EXMEYE - BFE RREBER EL 2K
SaRERENEMSTRREERAEZEE
EEW N RSP R o

SIRMEZERAR AR F1k 2013



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=F=A=+—HItFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Property, plant and equipment — continued

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost,
less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e., when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Ponies

Ponies held for provision of polo club related service are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of ponies
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Ponies are derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of ponies. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of ponies is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of ponies and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Other assets

Other assets representing the land use rights being acquired
through the acquisition of assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
of the Company in previous years, which are subject to
completion of the disposal (see note 20 for details), are carried
at costs less any accumulated impairment losses and are
shown as non-current assets. Cost includes the cost of land,
construction cost and other development expenditure and
other attributable expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

For the year 31 March 2013 & Z=—

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Prepaid lease payments

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the properties are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model, other
assets and properties under development for sale.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of the each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets
are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale which are intended to
be held for sale in the ordinary course of business are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value and are shown
as current assets. Cost includes the cost of land, construction
cost and other development expenditure and other attributable
expenses. Net realisable value is determined by management
based on prevailing market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=%=A=+—HItFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may
be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

For the year 31 March 2013 HEZ=F—

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset/liability and of allocating
interest income/expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts/payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset/liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=%=A=+—HItFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and deposits, amount
due from a related company, amounts due from subsidiaries
and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for the financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —T—=F=-A=t+—HI-FE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, amount due from a related
party and amounts due from subsidiaries where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable, amount
due from a related party and amounts due from subsidiaries
are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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For the year 31 March 2013 #EZ=F—

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. ESHE - &

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion option
derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both the
liability and conversion option components are recognised at
fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option derivative is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and conversion option
derivative in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the conversion option derivative is
charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HI-FE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Other derivative financial instruments

Other derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and thus they are deemed as financial assets held for trading or
financial liabilities held for trading.

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when they meet
the definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries, amounts due to related
companies, bank borrowing and loan from a shareholder) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

If the fair values of the convertible bonds issued to existing
shareholders of the Company upon initial recognition are in
excess of the proceeds received, such excess is recognised as a
distribution to equity participants in equity.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
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Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition — continued

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e., the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e., Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HI-FE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=%=A=+—HItFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FEGHBX - &

Leasing — continued

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model, other assets and properties under
development for sale. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed pension schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

For the year 31 March 2013 & Z—

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income/a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year 31 March 2013 & Z=—

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —T—=F=-A=t+—HI-FE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Taxation — continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e., based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for a business combination.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to Directors of the Company and
employees and others providing similar services

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested
before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in
the Group's consolidated financial statements until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit
or loss in respect of the value of options in the year. Upon
the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded by the Company as additional share capital at
the nominal value of the shares and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the share is recorded
by the Company as share premium. Options which lapse or
are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FEGHEX - &

Share-based payment transactions — continued

Share options granted to Directors of the Company
and employees and others providing similar services —
continued

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested on
or after 1 April 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based compensation
reserve) or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share option granted vest immediately.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
subsequent to vesting or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

For the year 31 March 2013 & Z—

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services rendered in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Hotel operation

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food and beverage sales
and other ancillary services in the hotel are recognised when
the relevant services have been rendered.

Polo club operation

Advertising and VIP Box income and ticketing income from
polo tournaments are recognised when the polo events are
held.

Revenue from the sale of polo club membership is recognised
on the straight-line basis over the expected life of the
membership.

Project management fee
Project management fee is recognised when service is rendered.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Group has reviewed its investment properties
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred tax on investment
properties, the Group has determined that the presumption
that the carrying amount of investment properties measured
using the fair value model is recovered entirely through sale
is rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised any
deferred tax subject to taxes on disposal of its investment
properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

For the year 31 March 2013 & Z—

4. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of

Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
conditions. In relying on the valuation report, the Directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of
the current market conditions. The fair value of investment
properties at 31 March 2013 was HK$10,690,129,000 (2012:
HK$8,087,981,000).

Fair values of conversion option derivative of convertible
bonds

The Directors of the Company use their judgment in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied.

The fair values of conversion option derivatives of convertible
bonds are subject to the limitation of the Binominal model
that incorporated market data and involved uncertainty in
estimates used by management in the assumptions. Because
the Binominal model requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the volatility of share price, changes
in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed
in note 35. The fair value of conversion option derivatives of
convertible bonds at 31 March 2013 was HK$20,022,000
(2012: HK$24,944,000).
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement and Key Sources of 4. EAE:HE RETTHBEE>

Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$1,083,380,000 (2012: HK$628,299,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In case where the actual future profits
generated are more than expected, additional recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which should be recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
period in which it takes place.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits,
as disclosed in notes 38 and 39 and consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company prepare the annual budget taking into account
of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual
budget, the Directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debts or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.
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6. Financial Instruments 6. ETMIA
The Group’s and the Company’s major financial instruments AEERAAFZEECFH T AOERKERER
include trade and other receivables and deposits, amount REMEWRRIEREZES - ER—REERRR
due from a related company, amounts due from subsidiaries, 1B ERMEARNE ReRkRESEEY -
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts JE A BR SR 2 oAt FE ST 5RIB - FESTE B A Bl
due to subsidiaries, amounts due to related companies, bank 15 - ENEERQRIKIE « RITENR - ATBRRE
borrowing, convertible bonds (including conversion option H(PFEHBERETETE) RIREER - Bz
derivatives) and loan from a shareholder. The risks associated Zom T EMERREReEN SRR (FIXRR
with these financial instruments include market risk (interest B SNEE RS R EMEEREE) - FERE R
rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk), credit risk FEREE o TXHIRMIEZFR R 2 BER ©
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are EIREEERERZEFRR - AREREREE
set out below. The management manages and monitors these e kA e
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.
There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these AEEMEY 2 ZEHMERSEERE RS
kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages and measures. 27T I EEE) o
(a) Categories of financial instruments @ £EtT AR
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
TEH b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F ET——-F ZZB-=Z=F ZZZT——-F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHTT T FrET
Financial assets TEEE
Loans and receivables B & W RIA
(including cash and cash (BEEEERRS
equivalents) ZEW) 1,491,339 1,659,889 10,876,905 9,959,382
Financial liabilities ZRHEE
Amortised cost e E [N 6,846,962 2,439,330 1,518,559 478,827
Conversion option derivatives AJ 2% (&%~ i #a HAfE
of convertible bonds PTET A 20,022 24,944 20,022 24,944

57)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 BiZE— T —=F=A=+—HItFE

6. £@MTHE — &
(b) FZ=E F

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loan from a shareholder (see note 36
for details of the loan).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank borrowing (see note 33 for
details of the borrowing). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate
on bank deposits. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk which relates primarily to the liability
component of convertible bonds issued by the Company.
The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank
deposits and for floating-rate bank borrowing at the end
of reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis
points increase (2012: 10 basis points increase) is used for
the management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. It is expected that the interest rate
will not decrease in the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher (2012:
10 basis points higher) and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31
March 2013 would increase by HK$1,088,000 (2012:
HK$1,539,000).

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @

AEEEmHERE —BREZEEHEE
HREBZAFEFNERE(ERFRHT
36) °

$¢I)TE”TEE§E??/§§J7TU BB/

RenENEER(BRFRMES) - K
SEZBRBERFBDHREEARER
DRFEFRRL o

AEEREREREMNERER - TIRER
TEFRRITHEHEZKE - AKETE
HRAFENXER  ETEEARRRET
A EScBERDS B - ARBERE
I 4 AR R T 4 T B & 49 DAY ) R @

- BERERRETREEZ BN
HEAMEEL -

BBED N
T2 @REEDHT » THIRFEFIREITE
FIIRITIZBVAI R G B R RS B R 2 Fi &
BEBRETE - RESTIBREAREHRZ
KEBEESCTENRNEFRERMER - LA
10EES (=T — =4 : J:ﬂ'101l§£)71
Fﬁf”Ef#\ BEFHFEZ BB R E
TEET B RS AR AR+ =@ A Wﬂ+
T -

MFE EF10EEZ (= —=F : £F
101EEE) B A H h e ER T~ -« BN
EERBE-_T—=F=-A=t+—HILF
& 2 3% #5148 501,088,000/ 7L (=T ——
£ 11,539,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(c) Foreign currency risk

For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —T—=F=-A=t+—HI-FE

6. €WMIH — &
(C) ZMNEE [ Bex

Certain bank balances, amount due from a related
party, amounts due from subsidiaries, amounts due to
related companies, trade and other payables, convertible
bonds (including conversion option derivatives) and loan
from a shareholder of the Group and the Company are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group and the
Company currently do not have a formal currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will further consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the respective functional currencies
of the relevant group entities at the reporting date are as

AEERARRZETRITER - BB~
HRERRFIE - RUEMBARFIE - &
NEER R FIA ~ AT BRR N HoAt 5 7K
B ABREES(BERLGEETETA)
AR IR EFIGAINERHE - AEE R A
RAREF AT A EEERER - AW
EREEESINERRLBNEREREE
EhEARINERR

AEERARRzEBEERERAER
EEFEERNT(HREEEENEER
HFTE R 2 & BWREE BRI

follows:
The Group AEE
Assets Liabilities
EE =L
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T——-F =ZEB-=F —ZT—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FH&xT T
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") Ho(#Ex]) 8,444 17,864 230,937 373,887
United States dollars (“USD"”)  ZEx([Ex]) 55,465 19,622 2,582,178 44
The Company XA F]
Assets Liabilities
BE =0
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F —ET——_—F ZB-=F —ZET——-fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T FH&T FH&T
HKD BT 5,996,327 6,183,448 370,760 503,771
usD =y 493,317 34 1,166,944 -

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

(59)

SIRMWEERAR AR F3, 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=%=A=+—HItFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(c) Foreign currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2012: 5%) increase and decrease in the
relevant functional currencies against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% (2012: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used for
the management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes external receivables and
payables where the denomination of the receivables and
payables is in a currency other than the functional currency
of the lender or the borrower.

A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase in
profit for the year of the Group and a decrease in loss for
the year of the Company where the respective functional
currencies strengthen 5% (2012: 5%) against the relevant

2

6. ®MTH — &

(©)

SRR — &

BBED N
TRAMANER RAR BN IERIT 8L &K
HAARAINE EF R RFE5% (=T ——4F ¢
5% ) ZBRNE 5% (=—T——4% : 5%)
BEEE ARG INEE R & 1A gt &
ZHEELL R - GURE D ITEBIEAINE
FHMEZ MAENEBIER @ RRFRIEIN
BEERSY (T — —4F : 5%) 2B EFHE
BE - HEE DT EIEE INEKGKIE K B
3008 - UGB KR SR E 5
BRI EB AN EREETHE -

T ZIES(BE)RTEMeeE I8
ONEETHES% (= FE— =4 : 5%) + IN&E
B F 5 2 80 M AR R EE B8 2R

o

foreign currencies.

BEMEEE L ABEERERESR(ZF—=
F5%)F - BHAKRBEFREENEAR
AFEEERBKERENRMIRYE

For a 5% (2012: 5%) weakening of respective functional
currencies against the relevant currencies, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year of
the Group and the loss for the year of the Company.

Hypothetical increase (decrease) in profit for
the year/(increase) decrease in loss for the year

FEBFZBRLA(TR),FEBRZBR(LA)TE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FEE AT

2013 2012 2013 2012

—2-=f —T-—% Z=ZB-=f —T—f

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FiEx THET Tz TAT

HKD BT 9,291 15578  (281,278)  (283,984)
USD £ 99,692 (813) 33,681 2)
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For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —T—=F=-A=t+—HI-FE

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(©)

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

Foreign currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the foreign currency risk inherent in
the financial assets and financial liabilities as at the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Other price risk

Conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds
The Group and the Company are required to estimate
the fair values of the conversion option derivatives of
convertible bonds issued by the Company at the end
of each reporting period, which therefore exposed the
Group and the Company to equity price risk. The fair value
adjustment will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in risk-free rate, the
Company'’s share price, share price volatility and foreign
currency exchange rate. Details of the convertible bonds
issued by the Company are set out in note 35.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s share price, volatility
and foreign currency exchange rate at the reporting date
only as the Directors of the Company consider that the
change in risk-free rate may not have significant financial
impact on the fair values of conversion option derivatives
of convertible bonds.

®

6. ®WmTH — &

(©)

SNEERER — &

BBED N — &

ERERA  ARFRZARI T RBF
RZER  REBESMATRESHE
ERSHMAENEBINERR -

HApESE R
RRESAAHETETA

AEERARRARSBERARGA AR
AIFTBITAIARES 2 LR MEITAE T A
AR RNl ASS SLIPSENTIEEEEE
EmERRER - A FEFHEFZE(ETE
B ERREE - NRAIBIE - RERER
SNEER Z IEE S B HE BT E - AR A
BT AR (B 27 2 FEIB B P FE35 ©

TXZBRED M RIBMEH R HRE R
HZ RRBIME R IE R INEE R @
E o WERAAREERARERA RS KE
ferefrmkEr ARBAEITETA
ZATFEBKEATBZE

SIRMEZERAR AR Fik 2013



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=%=A=+—HItFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued 6. eFTH — &

(d) Other price risk — continued d HbERERERE — &

Conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds -
continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

Changes in share price

If the share price of the Company had been 10% (2012:
10%) higher while all other input variables of the valuation
models were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would decrease and the Company’s loss for the year would
increase as follows:

THRESAAHETETA - &

WARAIREEAI10%(ZF——4F :
10%) + M EE A Z A H b A2
BESEFTE - BIARSEFE SR
2 MARBFEBEZEMET

2013 2012
—B-=F —ZET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET
Higher by 10% (2012: 10%) EA10% (=T —=F : 10%)
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRTA :
Conversion option derivatives of AR ES 2 RIGEIEITET A
convertible bonds (12,974) (8,311)

If the share price of the Company had been 10% (2012:
10%) lower while all other input variables of the valuation
models were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase and the Company’s loss for the year would
decrease as follows:

fh 75 2 TR (B T HE10% (=B — =4
10%) + Ttk BP9 2 BT A A A B
BB BT - A2 B R 5
o MARREEBEHROMT :

2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T THT
Lower by 10% (2012: 10%) TFE10%(ZFB——% : 10%)
Derivative financial instruments: TSR TA :
Conversion option derivatives of AIHRES 2 RIGEIEITAET B
convertible bonds 9,565 7,097

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —T—=F=-A=t+—HI-FE

6. Financial Instruments - continued 6. ®MITH — &
(d) Other price risk — continued d HfbERRERRE — &

Conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds - AERES 2 ARHETETE — &
continued
Sensitivity analysis — continued BUREAMT — &
Changes in volatility B e
If the volatility to the valuation model had been 10% (2012: REEERNP ZEE LT TE10%(=ZF
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held —ZF :10%) © MATA S LR
constant, the Group's profit for the year would (decrease) B RSB FE RN ORD )L -
increase and the Company’s loss for the year would RARFEEEFCEIN)RPIAT

(increase) decrease as follows:

2013 2012
—B-=F —ZET—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET
Higher by 10% (2012: 10%) EF10%(=F——4F : 10%)
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRTA :
Conversion option derivatives of AR ES 2 RAREIEITET A
convertible bonds (7,673) (8,531)
Lower by 10% (2012: 10%) TRE10%(ZZF—=%F : 10%)
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRTA :
Conversion option derivatives of ARES 2 AR EESTET A
convertible bonds 7,718 8,502
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For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=%=A=+—HItFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(d) Other price risk — continued

Conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds -
continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

Changes in foreign currency exchange rate

If the foreign currency exchange rate of RMB against Hong
Kong dollars had been 5% (2012: 5%) higher/lower while
all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit
for the year would increase (decrease) and the Company’s
loss for the year would decrease (increase) as follows:

2

6. ®MTH — &

d HbERERERE — &
TMRRESZ SRRETETAE — &

BEEHIT — &

i B o
ARS8 B T2 SMEESR 7/ THE5%
(ZF——% : 5%) - MAA RS
S RIS R O
ARRERARIE RS T :

2013 2012
—F-=Ff T —F
HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET
Higher by 5% (2012: 5%) FFHS%(ZE——% 1 5%)
Derivative financial instruments: PTESRTA -
Conversion option derivatives of AR ES 2 RIGEIEITET A
convertible bonds 1,001 1,247
Lower by 5% (2012: 5%) TFE5%(—ZE——4F :5%)
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRTA :
Conversion option derivatives of ARES 2 AR EAESTET A
convertible bonds (1,001) (1,247)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the conversion
option derivatives of convertible bonds involve multiple
variables and certain variables are inter-dependent.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(e) Credit risk

For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —T—=F=-A=t+—HI-FE

6. €I H — &
€) EER

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's and the Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the Company’s statement of
financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Company as
disclosed in note 44.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group is responsible for ensuring that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that
the Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
rating. At 31 March 2013, the Group has deposited an
aggregate of more than 90% of its bank balances with
one state-owned bank and one major commercial bank
in the PRC. The Directors of the Company believe that
these bank balances are fully recoverable after considering
the financial position and credit rating of these banks.
Moreover, there is no special restriction on withdrawal of
the balances from these banks.

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s concentration of credit risk
on trade and other receivables was mainly in PRC.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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o [ME44FIREBMARRIMELYE
BERZIARBESE -

REEREEERR  AKEEEERR
FEIR RN R F5 pE UK BB BR(E 75 = oS
AEENEHEHAREHNE B ER 2 TR
Bl &5 - AR EAWE 2 2 RIEH R
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REBZEERBERERE

AEBEENE TREENRRITERR
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For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=F=A=+—HItFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(e) Credit risk — continued

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and concentration of credit risk on trade and other
receivables which were mainly in PRC, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit risk.

The Company is exposed to concentration of credit risk
on a few operating subsidiaries on the amounts due from
subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s and the Company’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group and the Company manage
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking
facilities.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
(including trade and other payables, the liability component
of convertible bonds, amounts due to subsidiaries
and related companies, bank borrowing, loan from a
shareholder and corporate guarantees) and obligations
under finance leases. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and
obligations under finance leases based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

©

2

6. ®MTH — &

()

SEER - &
BREFHEEIRBIERADES
15 B B S v T B MR 0 B 1 B MR K
ZIEREREEEDEREL - REEY
EEUETHMENEERRET -

R B E D BUE £ B A )2 IR B
RRAFAZEERBET -

MENE & Ek

RBECRBRERZRRETENRES
g MEFTERBEEASERARAR
H hHRERAESMRDESEERTR
BYABRSECRAREEER - NEHE
RARREBER RABBRRITEREE
BRBESER

=

TRALAERRARFEHAGE(BHER
MNERAREMENFR - ATRRESAE
By ENMERRREEARRIE - R
TER - RREFAKR A RER) Rt &R
EEFCRBENBRY - ZRXREESR
BERBEHEEBNAREARRENR
BEiz AUBRSREMBH - hREBHE
MERASRERE
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For the year 31 March 2013 H &2 —ZT—=F=-A=+—HI-FE

6. Financial Instruments — continued 6. TRITH — &
(f) Liquidity risk — continued f RBESEREMRE - &
The Group EE
Carrying
Repayable amount at
Weighted  on demand Total  end of the
average  or less than 36 6months Over undiscounted  reporting
interestrate 3 months months  tolyear  1-2years  2-5years 5years  cash flows period
RER
EY  RERERE zE ~EA RERE  REEER

Rl F=EAUT ~fEA -§ -EZf  ZERF  EEUL A8  ZBEE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T TAn TERL TERL T TAn TERL Tin

H

2013 “E-cf
Trade and other payables FERBS RA bR F0E - 34154 - - - By - 33N 33N
Liabilty component of convertible AT k% ¢ & B

bonds 8.0% - 5516 235880 - - - M3 206,131
Amounts due to related ERBEATTE

companies - 1,863 11,019 - - - - 12,882 12,882
Bank borrowing HiTlm 7.8% 6,675 20,726 40,467 7661 206253 74084 45866 337,662
Obligations under finance leases  B& TR E &7 47% 2% 2% 5 105 280 - 489 402
Loan from a shareholder RRER 8.0% - 8333 103603 2,670,880 - - 2857816 2568966

3256088 120620 380002 2748646 680,330 74084 7259770 6,847,364

0 -3
Trade and other payables RS R fRER50E - 1,847,566 - - - MM - 209010 2,092,010
Liability component of convertible ATk E%2 & E&55

bonds 7.9% - 65,723 0144 244875 - - 397 25537
Amounts due to related ERBEATTE

companies - 92,083 - - - - - 92,083 92,083
Obligations under finance leases BT EfE7 6.0% 28 28 57 114 114 - 34 28

1939677 65,751 9,201 244989 244,558 - 2504176 2439612
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For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=F=A=+—HItFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued 6. TRITH — &
(f) Liquidity risk — continued f RBESEREMRE - &
The Company PN/
Carrying
Repayable amount at
Weighted  on demand Total end of the
average  orless than 3-6 6 months undiscounted reporting
interest rate 3 months months to 1 year 1-2 years cash flows period
nEH  REXRE =t AMER AER  REEER
Az H=@ANT ~fBA E-f -E2F  REREER ZEHfE

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEnL T TERL TAn Thn TERL

013 2-zf
Other payables EfuEfizE - 3,485 - - - 3485 3485
Liabilty component of convertible bonds ]k E% 2 & EHH 8.0% - 5,516 235,880 - 241,3% 206,131
Amounts due to subsidiares ERHBAATE - 140617 - - - 140617 140617
Amounts due to related companies  JERTEEEAFZUE - - 11,019 - - 11,019 11,019
Loan from a shareholder REER 8.0% - 37,541 46,672 1,203,219 1,287,432 1,157,307
Corporate quarantees DR - 2,000 - - - 2,000 -
146,102 54,076 282,552 1,203,219 1,685,949 1,518,559
01 -%-zf
Other payables HtERE - 1623 - - - 1623 1623
Liability component of convertible bonds - AT k&% 2 & B 79% - 65,723 9,144 244875 319,742 255,237
Amounts due to subsidaries ERMEAFTE - 129,884 - - - 129,884 129,884
Amounts due to related companies  [ERTEBA AR - 9,083 - - - 92,083 9,083
Corporate quarantees DR - 2,000 - - - 2,000 -
225,590 65,723 9,144 244,875 545,332 478827
Note: Liquidity risk analysis excludes conversion option derivatives itk : mEB B RBRAONMTEEESRESEET
of convertible bonds which do not involve cash settlements. BRES 2 SIREENTET A -
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(9) Fair values of financial instruments

For the year 31 March 2013 B2 —Z—=%=A=+—HItFE

6. @M TH — &

0 ERMIBEzRF¥E

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

e the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding conversion option derivatives of convertible
bonds) are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

e the fair values of conversion option derivatives of
convertible bonds are determined using option pricing
model.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised costs in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their corresponding fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

The Group and the Company

eMEERERARB AT EEER AN
™

o TREERTRABTEERKE
HZRABREENTETR) 2 AT ERE
NRERBSMED T RELEZ RRBTE
EEAEE -

o HMREFZHBHMENTETARYF
EFRMBIREERAEE -

ARREZRA - RAMBHRERPREH
KAz EMEER S RA BREER
HEHE¥BATHERS -

R BRRBRER 2 A FENE

TREHREAFEFENIBRARGTEZS
BTEDH  REAFEZBERMEIEE
DERE=MR -

o F=MAFHEFEENFTALIFRE
ABEMSEE(BEBRE 2B AR
BIMBZEERBBRRABE 2 (hE

FESH ©
REBREARDT
Level 3
E=R
2013 2012

—F-=F T —F
HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET
Financial liabilities @A sE
Conversion option derivatives of ARG 2 HAREIEITAE T A
convertible bonds 20,022 24,944
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=F=ZA=t—HIFE

For the year 31 March 2013 #EZ=F—

6. ®MTH — &

(0 EMIAZAF¥E - &
REBRRERBERZ A PEGE- #

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(9) Fair values of financial instruments — continued
Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position - continued

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial liabilities

EHEIEZFE =R FETEHER

Conversion

option

derivatives of

convertible

bonds

AR ES 2

RHRETETR

HK$'000

FABT

At 1 April 2011 RZZE——FMA—H 1,232,358
Total gains or losses recognised in: R 5IIE B R 2 ek sk B 1E 485

— profit or loss — 1B (873,052)

— other comprehensive income —HEfth 2 E i E 44,840

Conversion of convertible bonds AR TS S (379,202)

At 31 March 2012 RZZE—=—F=A=+—H 24,944
Total gains or losses recognised in: RTDIIE B #ER 2 Wan ST R AR -

— profit or loss — 8% (4,350)

— other comprehensive income —Hfth 2 E 311

Conversion of convertible bonds HBMARRES (883)

At 31 March 2013 R=Z2—=5=HA=+—H 20,022

Of the total gains or losses for the year recognised in profit BN E 25 T 3R 2 4F [ U o =k 5 18 4R 5E T
or loss, HK$2,533,000 (2012: HK$32,476,000) relates =S 0 HA12,533,0008 (=T ——F :
to gains on changes in fair values of conversion option 32,476,000/ 7T, ) B A ¥R 45 BAR (M AR TR )
derivatives of convertible bonds outstanding at the end of MREHF 2 HGHAETETRE 2 A EE
the reporting period. Fair value gains on conversion option @JH&E%F% o AR EH 2 K EARE DT A

derivatives of convertible bonds are included in gains on N ER .ﬁ')\i AE2EBERET
derivatives in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ilﬂzl&m
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year 31 March 2013 HEZ=FT—=F=-A=+—HILFE

7. Revenue

Revenue represents revenue arising on hotel operation, polo
club operation and project management for the year. An
analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

ERE

EEFIEFARBBAEERES  SHeEBKKIA
BERzWE - MAKERERZ WD T
T

2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T
Hotel operation NS 18,303 19,483
Advertising and VIP Box income from polo KRB B EZ EEREEREWA
tournaments 99,977 35,956
Ticketing income from polo tournaments REFEREELEZFIZRIMA 5,120 543
Polo club membership income Bikeesli A 1,531 -
Project management fee HEHEIEER 4,045 1,097
128,976 57,079

8. Segment Information

Information provided to the Executive Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of properties or services delivered
or provided. This is also the basis of organisation in the Group,
whereby the management has chosen to organise the Group in
different operating activities.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Property development — developing and selling properties
and project management

2. Property investment — leasing of investment properties
3. Hotel and polo club operation — provision of hotel

accommodation and related services, food and beverage
sales and polo club related services and activities
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

8. Segment Information — continued

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment:

2

DHER - &

Pl E S E S
AEEZEXBREERARERLLED D
T

Property development Property investment Hotel and polo club operation Total
NEER 3 EERFREER &3t
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-CF “EC “E-cF —E--F —E-cF “E-F t- S —ECE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERL TR TAnL

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEL TARL TAL TR TEL

Revenue BB 4,045 1,097 - 124,931 55,982 128,976 57,079
Segment (oss) profi AH(EE)
byl (49,905) (18,368) 823317 21,134 (299,709) (234.178) 473,703 (225412)
Interest income HMSWA 3,103 8716
Unallocated corporate (expenses) — K ATAR]
incorme (BRMA (174,158) 63,590
Finance costs HEER (25,197) (252,859)
Gains on derivatives TR NE 4,350 873,052
Profit before tax STyl 281,801 467,088

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit/loss represents the profit
earned by/loss from each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, interest income, finance
costs and gains on derivatives. This is the measure reported
to the chief operating decision maker, being the Executive
Directors of the Company, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

All of the revenue reported above are from external customers.

There was no material inter-segment revenue for the year (2012:
Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

8. Segment Information — continued

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities

8. ZHEM - &

THEERAR
AEEZBERABRAIREREED BN

by reportable and operating segment: R
Property development Property investment Hotel and polo club operation Total
EL NERE BEREREEH Eh
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“g-=f % -§-zf -§--F C§-f 3--f Zg-zf T Cf
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TR TER TER TR TEn TERL
Segment Assets ABEE
Segment assets AR 7458245 4783162 11141332 851185% 3294694 3372834 21894271 16,667,852
Unallocated comorate assets ~ AARATEE 1373241 1553345
23,267,512 18,221,197
Seqment Liabilties AREE
Seqment liabilities NG (1121559)  (335686)  (1,736,324) (1020075  (765730)  (573763)  (3,623,613)  (1,929,524)
Unallocated corporate liabiities ~ KATARIEE (4,482,785)  (1,484,025)
(8,106,398) (3,413,549
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and REZDHRBROEERES D -

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than the Group head office’s corporate
assets, intangible assets, and cash and cash equivalents.
Assets used jointly by reportable and operating segments
are allocated on the basis of the estimated gross floor
areas to be constructed by individual reportable and
operating segments; and

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than the Group head office’s corporate
liabilities, amounts due to related companies, bank
borrowing, tax payable, obligations under finance leases,
convertible bonds (including conversion option derivatives),
loan from a shareholder and deferred tax liabilities.
Liabilities for which reportable and operating segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x & Bf 7% ¥k & M &
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE
Segment Information — continued 8. AEPEHR — &
Other segment information HAth & R
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or FFAD EBIEmA D HEE 2 FKA ¢
segment assets:
Hotel and polo
Property development Property investment club operation Unallocated Total
EL NERE EEREREER AR &zt
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
“§-=f %% <-§-zf ~T--% C-§-=f ~F--%# C-E-zF ~"F-"F C-E-zf ~F-%
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEL TER TER TER TERL TEn TER TR TER
Additions to propert, RENE  BER
plant and equipment R 799 13 1,865 1,686 42,94 874,479 11,534 155 57,139 877,043
Addtions to ponies AERL - - - - 21 47761 - = 21 47761
Amortisation of prepaid lease TR EFELH
payments - - - - 6,396 1,652 - - 6,396 1,652
Depreciation of property,  #1% - B R
plant and equipment HENE 681 494 1,589 1,152 114,306 54273 3,650 2,446 120,226 58,365
Depreciation of ponies BIE - - - - 9279 4181 - - 9,279 4181
(Gain) loss on disposal of ~ REHE  BER
property, plant and Hiez ()
equipment BB - - - - - 710 (17) 75 (117) 785
Written off of ponies S - - - = 1314 = - - 1314 =
Increase in fair value of REWE?
investment properties ATEEN - - 853 69,489 - - - - 855332 69,489
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

8. Segment Information — continued 8.

Geographical information

The Group's operations in property development, property
investment and hotel and polo club operation are principally
located in the PRC, excluding Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the operations.
Information about the Group’s carrying amount of non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical area in which
the assets are located.

DERER — &’

i & B R

AEEYERR  DERERBEERFRGE
B EBEET2MUNTE - TEEEE -

BRAKEREINGES ZREERRIELE
WEE - AEAKBEERBEE ZREEER
RIRBEEMEEES o

Revenue from

Carrying amounts of

external customers non-current assets
REIMBEFE z W= FRBEEZREAE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F5 —E-——-F —B-=F —ZE——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T FH&xT T
Hong Kong BB 2,633 1,097 10,800 6,248
Other regions in the PRC FR B E fh i & 126,343 55,982 14,248,395 11,714,806
128,976 57,079 14,259,195 11,721,054
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & 9 % 3R & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

8. Segment Information — continued 8. oHER — &
Geographical information — continued wEER — &
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years RERZEMASEEHEBFEWEZR10% A E
contributing over 10% of the Group'’s revenue are as follows: MEP 2T

2013 2012
—B-=F —ZET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FABT
Customer A’ & B Hh 37,805 22,013
N/A2
Customer B! BEZ 28,724 NER?
N/A2
Customer C! BER 21,958 A2
1 Revenue from hotel and polo club operation. U RERENEERSRE K -
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 2 ARG EBAAREERE 2 10% ©
revenue of the Group.
9. Other Income 9. HgA
Other income for the year comprises: FAZEMPABIE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interest received on bank deposits RITIFFUELZ FIE 3,103 8,716
Government grants BT BN 12,506 =
Others HA 94 98
15,703 8,814
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five Highest 10. % - THEBRAZEEHES
Paid Employees’ Emoluments [ [

(i) Details of Directors’ and the Chief Executive’s () BEBERITHABMSHFBUOT
emoluments are as follows:
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2012: ENSENTEZ(ZE—ZF: +—R)&E
eleven) Directors and the Chief Executive were as follows: EFARTHRES 20T :

Fees and other emoluments

HEREMME
Salaries,
bonuses Retirement Share-based
and other benefits  payments Total
Fees benefits costs expenses emoluments
e B3 4
AR RIERI ER AT
e HA3EA (D% Z&HR Wemsm
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TET TERT
(Note)
(FE)
Mr. Pan EEE - 22,500 15 - 22,515
Professor Huang Xiaojian’ BEEHR - 930 10 401 1,341
Mr. Lai Chi Kin LR 410 - - - 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 341 - - - 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai EEEIEL 273 - - - 273
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond T Bt 4 - 3,479 15 1,267 4,761
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun FEEE LA - 1,980 15 1,164 3,159
Mr. Li Huamao FERLE - 1,377 - 1,164 2,541
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin =ZRNE - 2,223 15 1,185 3,423
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey THALE - 2,400 7 2,123 4,530
Total for 2013 —E-=F@H 1,024 34,889 77 7,304 43,294

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @ SIRMEREIRARAT FR 2013



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five Highest 10. ¥ - TRARRAERSHES

Paid Employees’ Emoluments — continued e — 4
(i) Details of Directors’ and the Chief Executive’s () EBRITHEZMESHFBEOT : —
emoluments are as follows: — continued e

Fees and other emoluments

we kAL
Salaries,

bonuses  Retirement  Share-based
and other benefits payments Total
Fees benefits costs expenses  emoluments

e VAR5 4

TR RIRRER TR
e Hiizil AR ZER em

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THAT TR THEL TAT

(Note)
(FE)

Mr. Pan BRE = 22,500 12 - 22,512
Professor Huang Xiaojian =2 B2 - 1,431 - 258 1,689
Mr. Lai Chi Kin RERSE 410 - - - 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 341 = = = 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai BERBL 273 = = = 273
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond T &4 = 3,438 12 852 4,302
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun FEEE LA = 1,938 12 436 2,386
Mr. Wang Wuren- FRCEE- - 581 - 431 1,012
Mr. Li Huamao TEXLLE = 1,196 = 436 1,632
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin wmEZELA = 2,113 12 520 2,645
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey TEALE - 2,400 6 42 2,448
Total for 2012 —E-CFEE 1,024 35,597 54 2,975 39,650
#  Resigned as a Director on 29 November 2012 # R —F+t-—A-ThBEEEE=E—E
~  Resigned as a Director on 27 July 2011 ~ RIE—FLA-TtHBEESF B
Note: The bonuses were determined with reference to the duties MiEE « HADE2EEFTHG RE EURITETEH

and responsibilities of the Directors, as well as remuneration TEAE SR IEEETE ©

benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
Mr. Pan is also the Chief Executive of the Company and EIREINARRNRITHRAE  EXXFTHEE
his emoluments disclose above include those for services B <5 B 35 E 1 A 1TIEAR R FTIR (AR 75 2 B
rendered by him as the Chief Executive. £ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five Highest
Paid Employees’ Emoluments — continued

(i) Employees’ emoluments:
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, five (2012: four) are the Directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed above. In 2012, the
emoluments of the remaining one individual was an
employee of the Group, details of whose remuneration are

10. EE - THAEBRIEBSHES
e — &

(i) lEEME :
EREERERSHEALH  AE(ZF
——fF ME)ARARESE  HEZHE
REXBE -R-T——&F BT—8A
TAREEES  EBS BT :

as follows:
2013 2012
2= —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHBT
Salaries, bonuses and other benefits Fe A REMEF - 3,956
Retirement benefits costs RIREFIRA - 12
- 3,968

The emolument was within the following band:

WEZMENFTFEE

2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT—=F

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7C 24,000,000/ 7T - 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the Directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors of the Company has waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @

RREAR ARETENME TARE
EEAAEERERSHFALTERMAR
SEE W MARNE B 2 B R iF ARk
BEEE - RMFATEARRIESTRENX
R R REE M o

SIRMEZERAR AR F1k 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & 9 % 3R & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

11. Finance Costs . MKEAR
2013 2012
—B—-=F Z—ZT—_-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Interest on: TAEBEZFE
— Finance leases —REHRE (38) (45)
— Bank borrowing —RITIEK (20,218) =
— Shareholder’s loan wholly repayable —ERRAFRNEHEEZREER
within five years (32,359) —
Effective interest expense on AR ES 2 BEREN SR
convertible bonds (41,269) (968,106)
(93,884) (968,151)
Less: Amount capitalised in investment W ERIREYFE AN EEE
properties under construction 15,111 207,435
Amount capitalised in construction EREIBZENMEEE
in progress - 185,976
Amount capitalised in properties BRPGEVFEZENML S
under development for sale 53,576 321,882
(25,197) (252,858)
Note: All capitalised finance costs are related to specific borrowings. MizE : FTEEMEM BB AEEEERER -
12. Gains on Derivatives 12. TE T B2k
2013 2012
—B-=F —ZET——F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHAT
Fair value change on conversion option AR ES 2 R EIREITET A Y
derivative of convertible bonds (note 35) A EZE (FIFE35) 4,350 873,052
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

13. Profit Before Tax 13. BRB A&
2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Profit before tax has been arrived at BREE AR A E R GTA) AT &R -
after charging (crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration %A S 4,132 3,883
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TB R & SR B 6,396 6,308
Less: Amount capitalised in construction in i : EETLIEZ BN &5
progress - (4,656)
6,396 1,652
Depreciation of property, M - BEREERTE
plant and equipment 120,226 58,365
Depreciation of ponies Biire 9,279 4,181
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and &% - BE &2 () EE
equipment (117) 785
Written off of ponies 5 U3 85 1,314 =
Operating lease rentals in respects of rented FHEWE 7 KLFHEHS
premises 15,124 15,547
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & TkA(EEZEEME)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e TEA RORRG 228,675 208,673
Retirement benefits cost (note 41) RRRERAK AR (B EE41) 17,044 13,668
Share-based payments expenses AR BERNSHRZER 67,767 29,135

313,486 251,476
Less: Amount capitalised in investment W ERIREMEZENEEE

properties under construction (18,876) (14,776)
Amount capitalised in construction in HEREIRZERN &

progress - (11,811)
Amount capitalised in properties under BRERPSEVEZERN LR

development for sale (32,279) (23,222)

262,331 201,667
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

14. Income Tax Expense 14. FrSBIERM XX

2013 2012
—E-—=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FABT

The income tax expense comprises: FriStiIBfMZ 21 :

PRC Enterprise Income Tax FP B b FE PSR

— Current year —RNEE - —
Deferred tax (note 37) TR TE (MI7E37) (213,833) (17,372)
Income tax expense for the year FEMEHRX (213,833) (17,372)

O 9 ] F [ 3 458 R SR A K - R AT IR R
A -

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided as there was no
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "“EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

RIBHRBEGERSTOR([REMREHRE]) RE
EMBPAERES B —FTENF—HA—8
RPN BIRANE AR 2 ER25% °

REFASHRIAR A BEA 2EKER 25K
FRTa@ A E AR -

2013 2012

—E-=F —ZT——-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT T

Profit before tax MR BnE A 281,801 467,088
Tax charge at the domestic BAHFTSBIR25% (=T — =4 : 25%)

income tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) HEBBEYH (70,450) (116,772)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EEM B AER ZE 2 B A B
operating in other jurisdictions TR 2 72 (13,396) 58,175

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax

FRERTR N & BARIIAZ RIS E

purpose 1,047 175,555
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax gtk M 5 NMEHRF > 2 Biig e 2

purpose (24,300) (47,634)
Tax effect of intragroup profit EE A= 2 TS (2,955) (1,746)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WERERZ RIEEBEZ FigTE (101,527) (82,155)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB AR AR FER 2 B TEE 1B

recognised - 448
Others Hib (2,252) (3,243)
Tax charge for the year FERBEL M (213,833) (17,372)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Directors of the
Company for both years, nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of the reporting period.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

15. K2

16. BRERI(EE)

NN B EE S K A R IR A A A 2 B
B BHMEHRURTEZZIRMHEARE

ARRIHERABEERERARESEN (BR)
R T BIEHE

2013 2012
= —ZT——F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Earnings (loss) B FI(E5E)
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings FARETEERERREF 2 ZF|
per share (Profit for the year attributable (ARRATEER AELEERA)
to owners of the Company) 67,968 449,716
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:  BfE#E @A 2 £ -
Fair value change on conversion option AR ES 2 RIRERITET A Y
derivatives of convertible bonds NEEEH (4,350)  (873,052)
Interest on Convertible Bonds due 2012 R — —FHH 7 KR EET B 4,941 252,813
Exchange gain in relation to liability EiEnERERRESFEESS
component of convertible bonds B2 E R s
recognised in profit or loss (2,685) (190,913)
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of diluted AR ESRESES R (B18) 2
earnings (loss) per share 27 (&) 65,874 (361,436)

(23] BRI ER AR AR 1R 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & 9 % 3R & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

16. Earnings (Loss) Per Share — continued 16. BB F (E5E) — &
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Number Number
of shares of shares
ROEEE 4=
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EFRERERNZ
shares for the purpose of basic B INRE T AR 2K
earnings per share 3,563,646,943 1,352,538,248
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: JE&7E#EE T @A% 728 -
— Share options — RERRAE 23,964,450 1,709,733
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 53,892,465 1,377,677,001

Weighted average number of ordinary RARTEEREERRN(EE)Z
jéz A z'z ]

shares for the purpose of diluted It 58 A% N E S AR 2

earnings (loss) per share 3,641,503,858 2,731,924,982
The computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share for both HRTREESRMESE RN ZF9H
years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 does not B BEEHE_T—=F=A=+—HRKZ=
assume the exercise of certain of the Company’s share options T——F=A=1T—HIWMEAFE 2 GRKkE#ES
as the exercise price was higher than the average market price B (BRI B REAR A FE TRERERET
per share for both years. & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. 9% - BERRE
Hotel and Furniture,
Construction ~ poloclub ~ Plantand  Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings  inprogress  properties  machinery improvements equipment vehicles Total
BER i %ER

BF  ARIE RRENEX HERRE ERNREE B nE &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TEL THL TEL THL THL TEL THL

(Note)
(fiz)

THE GROUP Py
AT COST A
At 1 April 2011 RZE——%NA-A 3532 1,927,284 - 122 5,549 70,412 49,290 2,056,789
Exchange realignment [ERa% 129 65,092 - 26 - 2,288 1,705 69,240
Additions #in = 840,236 - - - 35,503 1,304 877,043
Transfer ER - (2832612 2832612 - = = - =
Disposals HE = = = - - (1,469) - (1469)
At 31 March 2012 R-E-2%

=A=t-H 3,661 - 2,832,612 748 5,549 106,734 52,299 3,001,603
Exchange realignment B A% 51 - 35,019 10 - 1,389 699 37,168
Addifons 0] - - - - S B 1/ S A
Disposals & - - - - - (7.176) (117) (7.293)
At 31 March 2013 R_Z-Z%

=A=1-H 3,712 - 2,867,631 758 5,549 147460 63,507 3,088,617
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 April 2011 R=E——FMA—H 54 - - 122 4571 6,215 4241 15,803
Exchange realignment EiAE 2 - - 26 - 109 137 274
Provided for the year EERE 167 - 25,284 - 872 2,115 9,927 58,365
Eliminated on disposals HEREEE - - - - - (684) - (684)
At 31 March 2012 R-E--F

=f=t-H 223 - 25,284 748 5,443 27,755 14,305 73,758
Exchange realignment B8 3 - 355 10 - 317 186 87
Provided for the year EERE 148 - 76,789 - 106 31,288 11,895 120,226
Eliminated on disposals HERTH - - - - - (7,070) (105) (7.175)
At 31 March 2013 R-B-=%

=A=t-H 374 - 102,428 758 5549 52,290 26,281 187,680
CARRYING AMOUNTS EEE
At 31 March 2013 RZE-Z%

=H=n=H 3,338 - 2,765,203 - - 95,170 37,226 2,900,937
At 31 March 2012 i

=A=1-H 3438 - 2,807,328 - 106 78,979 37,99 2,927,845
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued

2

17. 9% - BEERE - &

Motor
vehicle
RE
HK$'000
T
THE COMPANY RAF]
AT COST KA
At 1 April 2012 R-T——FmA—A -
Addition 140 850
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=F=HA=+—H 850
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2012 MN-_ZE——Fm@A—H -
Provided for the year FERE 113
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%F=A=+—H 113
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 March 2013 N-E—=%F=H=+—H 737
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H =

The buildings are located on land held under long lease and are
located in the PRC.

The hotel properties are located on land held under medium-
term lease and are located in the PRC.

The polo club properties are located on land owned by &
EHRMEXEREEZEE Administrative Committee
of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park. During the year ended 31
March 2009, REFHHMEXEREEZE® Administrative
Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park had granted the
Group with the right to use such land for 40 years provided
that the Group was committed to construct the polo club
with minimum investment of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$180,800,000). The Group had already reached the
committed minimum investment during the year ended 31
March 2010.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @

FZEBFMUNPBIARMEERE 2 i F o

ZEBEYELNTEATSHEERF 2 i
e

BHREMEMRRKENPNELEREEEZS
AT T BE-_ETEAE=A=1+—
HIEFE  REFRNEXEEREREEZEEN
REBBEHNZE L2 FAE - BH40F - 51
RANEEFAZAETIRE  SEKEBAR
# 160,000,000 7T (#8574 180,800,000/8 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued 17. 9% - BERRE — &

The carrying amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment
of the Group in respect of assets held under finance leases was
HK$314,000 (2012: HK$98,000).

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the estimated useful life of
20 years, or the unexpired term
of the relevant lease, whichever
is shorter

Over the estimated useful life of
40 years, or the unexpired term
of the relevant lease, whichever
is shorter

Plant and machinery 10% — 20%

Leasehold improvements  Over the estimated useful life of
5 years or the unexpired term of
the relevant lease, whichever is
shorter

20% - 33'5%

Buildings

Hotel and polo club
properties

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Note: As at 31 March 2013, the carrying amount of hotel properties
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$2,023,821,000
(2012: HK$2,053,648,000) while the carrying amount of polo
club properties of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$741,382,000 (2012: HK$753,680,000).

During the year, the Directors conducted a review of the
Group’s hotel and polo club properties and determined that
those assets were not impaired after the consideration of
the expectations on the market development and business
growth of the hotel and polo club after the completion of the
residential and commercial properties in the same area being
developed by the Group. Accordingly, no impairment loss was
required to be recognised in respect of the Group’s hotel and
polo club properties for the year.
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AEBEZTUREREREZHM  £EER
R REEA314,0008 T (—F— % :
98,000/ 7T) ©

BRBERTRRINZYE - BERRBAER
ERETINFERFE

BF AR A ERES
St EREERA
(AEFE HIE R2E)

BIERFHREYE MO+FZ G A ERFS
St EREERA
(AEE HIE R2E)

Hees Kkt
HEMREE

10% - 20%

R 2 fhET AR A
iH R B E R
(AERE HiE R2E)

R EBREME  20% -335%

RE 20%

fizt: RZE—=46=fA=+—0 A&EBBEEDE
ZBREE#)52,023,821,0008 T (=T ——4 :
2,053,648,00087L) ' MASEFHREMEZ
BR T & Bl 4 5 741,382,000 B T ( —Z B — — 4 :
753,680,000/ 7T ) ©

FA - EFCRAAKEZBEERFREY
X UKEEHBERFREMSHERAR
SERFRE—ERAEZEEREAMEZK
BEEBHIERZBIR - BEXFEELER
BERE - Bt - FRBARAREEE RFIR
SYRHERREER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

18. Ponies 18. BT

THE GROUP
rEE
HK$'000
FABT

AT COST 2%
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FMA—H 16,217
Exchange realignment PE 5 = 590
Additions 140 47,767
At 31 March 2012 RZZE—=—f=A=+—H 64,574
Exchange realignment BE H R 862
Additions =0 261
Written off ik (1,521)
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=%=RA=+—H 64,176

DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2011 RZZE—FMNA—H -
Exchange realignment D 34, e -
Provided for the year FRERHE 4,181
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 4,181
Exchange realignment FE 3, R 59
Provided for the year FERE 9278
Elimination on written off MEHRRHE (207)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=%=A=+—H 13,312

CARRYING AMOUNT REE

At 31 March 2013 R=ZF-—=F=A=+—H 50,864
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=H=+—H 60,393

Ponies are depreciated on a straight-line basis at 14.3% per

annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

19. Investment Properties

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

19. BREY#

THE GROUP

rEE

HK$'000

FABT

At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FMA—H 6,824,650

Exchange realignment FE 5, = 247,448
Construction cost incurred and Fr/EE 4 2 BREER AR R B A 2

capitalised expenditure 946,394

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRER 2 AFERE N 69,489

At 31 March 2012 R-E——HF=A=+—H 8,087,981

Exchange realignment BE 5 R 109,998
Construction cost incurred and FREE & 2 RSB AN R B ANME I X

capitalised expenditure 1,636,818

Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRER 2 AFERE M 855,332

At 31 March 2013 R=-B—=F=H=+—H 10,690,129

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2013 and 31 March 2012 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out on these dates by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group,
who has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The valuations of the Group’s investment properties under
construction are determined with reference to the fair value of
the bare land plus construction costs incurred. The fair value of
the bare land has been arrived at by adopting the comparison
approach and making reference to the market transactions as
available in the markets, with adjustments made to account
for various factors including geographical location of the
properties, availability of transportation system and public
facilities and the estimated development period of the Group’s
investment properties under construction.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals purpose are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties. All of the Group’s investment properties are under
construction and located on leasehold lands in the PRC under
medium-term leases.
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B AEBEZREVMEZME  H2EAH
EM 2 ANV ENASIBCZEKXTETE ° A
R Z ATERBLEERSETS LAFZ
MERS W EHERRBEWEZ MM
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BB YE Z BRI HEMSH

AEERBEEHERBERERE A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

20. Other Assets

The Group

The other assets amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to
HK$325,277,000) represented land use rights acquired from
KiEBHEEKEEAR AR Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group
Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding"”) through the
acquisition of assets and liabilities of Goldin Properties (Tianjin)
Company Limited during the year ended 31 March 2009,
which would be disposed of within twelve months subsequent
to year ended 31 March 2009 (the “Disposal”). The land
use rights were located on leasehold lands in the PRC under
medium-term leases and carried at the lower of cost and fair
value less cost to sell. A deposit of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$306,720,000) was received from Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding
during the year ended 31 March 2009.

At 31 March 2011, the Directors reassessed the probability
of the completion of the Disposal. It was considered that the
Disposal would probably be terminated due to the change
of development plan of the purchaser. Accordingly, the land
use rights amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to
HK$340,739,000) was classified as other assets under non-
current assets. The deposit of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$321,300,000) was classified as deposit received in advance
included in trade and other payables as at 31 March 2011.
Details of trade and other payables are set out in note 31(d).

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Disposal was not yet
terminated nor completed. Accordingly, the land use rights
subject to the Disposal remain accounted for as other assets
and the deposit received in advance included in trade and other
payables as at 31 March 2013 amounted to RMB286,335,000
(equivalent to HK$358,091,000) (2012: RMB286,335,000
(equivalent to HK$353,137,000)) and RMB270,000,000
(equivalent to HK$337,662,000) (2012: RMB270,000,000
(equivalent to HK$332,991,000)), respectively.
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20. HihEE

REE

H i B E A R # 286,335,000 7t (48 & R
325,277,000/ L) BB BAREBE_T T NF
A=+ HEFERRREZERZEREE
BRAR([REERER ] WESRBE(K
E)BRARZEERA EMERS 2 L ER
T Mz T AEeEREE—EENF=A
=t BLFEEERET-_AAREE(HES
B]) o LinFARUNFBHEERE @ WARF
BIAE & 43 | B 3k AR B A T AR SRR 2
RIEETE REBEE-_ZZHhE=A=1+—H
LEFER - BRAXESRIERKEUZS AR
270,000,0007T (#8557306,720,000/5 7T ) °

RZE——F=A=+—H EZE5HIHT
REESEEZ Ak RAEHEEEAERE
HEBEERERTE MR - it - BHEARKE
286,335,000 7t ( #H 55 7 340,739,000 7% 7T ) &
THFERAEEREAERBEEE N2 HME
E-R-_T——F=A=1+—H REARK
270,000,000 7t ( 4 % 7 321,300,000 7% 7T ) E
SEATERIZS ST ABNERR R E AL ER R
18 o FEAST BRI E M FE A I SF B SR M 5
31(d)

RZE—=ER-_FT——F=H=+—08 " H
EEHEMRKRIERTEN - At - RZT—=
“A=1+—8 RELEFE N2 THERE
TR E Ath & 22 A BR At A B BR 30 K HL b e 4+
IB 2 FEWIZ S 2 Bl & A K% 286,335,000 7T
(#8514 358,091,0008 L) (ZF—=F : AR
#286,335,0007C (#HF52353,137,000787T) ) &
AR # 270,000,000t ( 48 5 # 337,662,000 7
TT)(ZT——4F : AR¥270,000,0007T (%
7332,991,000/7T) ) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 E#lZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

21. Prepaid Lease Payments

21. A HEHERIE

THE GROUP
TEH
2013 2012
—B-=F ZZZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: LIRS B IEE AT
Current portion mENE D 6,396 6,308
Non-current portion IERENEL D 251,861 254,685
258,257 260,993
The Group'’s prepaid lease payments RNEE 2 BNHEERBEVMRFEZ
represent land use rights in the PRC and TR - BE
comprise:
Long lease REIFHE 84,373 84,858
Medium-term lease FHITRE 173,884 176,135
258,257 260,993

As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the carrying
amount of land use rights used for hotel operation
amounted to approximately RMB139,041,000 (equivalent to
HK$173,884,000) (2012: RMB142,816,000 (equivalent to

HK$176,135,000)).

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

2

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

22. Intangible Assets

22 B EE

Club
debentures
BFfES
HK$'000
FAT
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY AEBRAAT
AT COST 2%
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and R—ZT—FmWMA—H —FE——FE=HA=+—H
31 March 2013 r=ZZT—=F=RA=+—H 610
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERRE
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and R—ZT—FmWMA—H —FE——FE=HA=+—H
31 March 2013 r=ZZT—=F=RA=+—H 520
CARRYING AMOUNT IREE
At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 R-BE——F=A=+—8AK
—E—=%=A=+—H 920

ZETBEREMES  BAERAEREH R
AAEBEFBYERMELLEND - §

The amount represents the club debentures which are having
an indefinite useful life because they are expected to generate

B

economic benefit indefinitely. The club debentures are tested
for impairment annually by reference to the market value.
23. Deposits Paid for Acquisition of Property, Plant and
Equipment

The Group

As at 31 March 2013, deposits paid by the Group amounting
to approximately HK$7,223,000 (2012: HK$36,923,000) was
mainly in relation to the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment for hotel and polo club operation.

®
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23. BEYE  BENRRECEARE

REE

RZE—=F=A=+—H  AKBEMZES

#97,223,0007 7L (=& — —4F : 36,923,000/8

TEZEBAERGRSEBESVE  BE
HEERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 E#lZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

24. Inventories 4. &
THE GROUP
KEE

2013 2012
—E-=F ZZ——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHBT
Food, wine and beverage and general stores &%) « B MSREHA R —RFE 63,393 70,084
Polo products BSBRE M 5,354 3,772
68,747 73,856

25. Investments in Subsidiaries

25. fFYB A&

THE COMPANY

PN

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FEx FHIT

Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMmRRG « RKAR 1,467,157 1,434,500
Deemed capital contribution in subsidiaries  R{EF &M E A 7 (Hi3E)

(Note) 2,117,111 1,549,576

3,584,268 2,984,076

Less: Impairment loss recognised B EMRZBERE (1,217,922)  (540,079)

2,366,346 2,443,997

Note: Deemed capital contribution in subsidiaries represented the
adjustments on the carrying amounts of amounts due from
subsidiaries to reflect their new amortised cost, calculated using
effective interest rate and the relevant expected repayment terms (i.e.,
the imputed interests on amounts due from subsidiaries).

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2013 and 31 March 2012 are set out in note 46.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Directors of the
Company reviewed the carrying values of the investments.
The recoverable amounts of these investments for the year
are determined with reference to the Directors’ estimate
of discounted future cash flows and net assets of these
investments as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
impairment loss of HK$677,843,000 (2012: HK$400,773,000)
was recognised in the Company’s statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & 9 % 3R & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

26. Properties Under Development for Sale 26. BRPIFEWE
The Group REE
The Group's properties under development for sale are situated REFEzERPHFEYMELNTE - AEER
in the PRC. All properties under development for sale are AR B RAK AN ER A # 3R ER 2 RIEE T
carried at lower of cost and net realisable value. R o
Included in the properties under development for sale as at RZE—=F=A=+—0  BRIPFEMWHE
31 March 2013 are properties under development for sale BIETE B EERNREBRET T =@ A AT
which are not expected to be completed and/or available R/ SHAIHHEZERBEENEARYE
for sale within twelve months from the end of the reporting 2,727,598,000 7T (#8574 3,411,134,0007%8 7T )
period amounting to RMB2,727,598,000 (equivalent to —E— 4 AR¥1,252,432,0007C (FEER
HK$3,411,134,000) (2012: RMB1,252,432,000 (equivalent to 1,544,624,000%7T) ) °

HK$1,544,624,000)).

27.Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and 27. FEURBR X 2 H b FEURFIE ~ FE(T R

Deposits HRZRE
THE GROUP
AEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Trade receivables FEURBR X 19,736 20,434
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RERREEE (1,225) (1,295)
18,511 19,139
Other receivables and prepayments (Note) oAb FEMGRIE R T EIE (faE) 236,783 179,172
Deposits e 13,049 8,889
Total trade and other receivables, prepayments FEUSBRFX K B b FEUG FRTE ~ T Z/TE &
and deposits ReMsE 268,343 207,200
Note: Bt et
As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, other receivables and R-E—=F=A=+—HBR=_Z——F=A=+—H"
prepayments mainly include (i) the amount of approximately H A EUGRIE RIEMFIEE ERE)RRREREHER
RMB42,929,000 (equivalent to HK$53,687,000) (2012: RMB42,929,000 BERAR(RZEREHE ) ARNKBERZESREXS
(equivalent to HK$52,945,000)) which represented receivable from Tianjin RAR([ER]| —ERBEZE_FTAF=A=+—81t
Hi-Tech Property Development Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech FREREZMBAR) 2 EERABRRBAERERR
Property”) in respect of the corresponding tax liability paid and payable in B B A R IE 2 AEERIE 8 & i IR R G R E HE
respect of waiver of shareholders’ loans in which Tianjin Hi-Tech Property ZFIEH AR 42,929,0007T (#8572 53,687,000 7T )
has agreed to bear upon the acquisition of assets and liabilities of X3Z#E & —T——4F : AR¥42,929,0007T (#HFH 52,945,000/
E ¥ AR /A7 Tianjin Huading Real Estate Company Limited (“Huading”), J0)) ° ZRIB AR - R ERREREE 0 RI)EED
a subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31 March 2009. The amount is BB /I8 106,496,000/ 7T ( =F ——4F : 60,466,000/
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand; and (i) prepayments for JT) °

construction materials of HK$106,496,000 (2012: HK$60,466,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

27.Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

27. B AR R K At EWFRTR ~ AR

Deposits — continued

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
customers for certain services rendered by the Group. The
Group's trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period,
which approximated the respective revenue recognition dates,
was within the age of 60 days.

All the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have good settlement repayment history. The Group has
assessed the creditworthiness and historical default rates of
these customers.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
Accordingly, the Directors of the Company believe that there
is no further provision required except for the allowance for
doubtful debts already made as set out below.

kS - &

AEBBERTZETRBETELFH=1
BZEEH - REEHR - AEELHBRE
Bz RERFRBEER A B (RS WaiER A
HARRAY) Z BRERIGINN TR A

P 3t A SR B 2 MR - B EE R &F
BNERES - AEEEHEZERPZEE
REN BUBEIER K

EE R R E 2 R - REEEEEK
ERBHNAXLEAEERENRZEEEE
EAIEME - BERBFEMBEARE TRHE 5
ERBMNETREEAR - Bt - ARREEMN
5 B TAIEER ZRER BN - BEE—F
B -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RS
2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT—=F
HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 April HEA—A 1,295 1,361
Exchange realignment fE = (70) (66)
At 31 March W=A=+—~H 1,225 1,295
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

2

A

27.Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and 27. FEURBR S i H b FEURFRIE ~ FE X

Deposits — continued EHRiEE — &
The Group’s trade and other receivables, prepayments and AR EE R 2 e BN B BB AT
deposits that are denominated in currencies other than the ARG B PR BR R R Ho A EUGRIE ~ FETRIE
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out Rig@aT :
below:
usb HKD
P BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FAT
At 31 March 2013 R=-BE—=%5=H=+—H 8 6,633
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=H=+—H 13,522 544
The Company’s trade and other receivables which were IARRB 2 BB AN BB REMN Z AR
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency BN AR R R E At FEUGRIB AT
of the Company are set out below:
HKD
BT
HK$’000
T
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=5=HA=+—H -
At 31 March 2012 R-ZT——F=A=+—H 117

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @ SIRMEREIRARAT F3R 2013



28.

29.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & Bt #% ¥k &

-
at
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Amount Due From A Related Company 28. B —EIRE A RFIE
THE GROUP
S 3]
Maximum
amount
outstanding
Balance at Balance at during
31.3.2013 1.4.2012 the year
R-B-=% R-T-=F FR
=ZA=t—-H MWA-HZ &BEXHEE
& HER T8
Name of related company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gl UNCIE ] FHET FET FET
Smart Edge Limited BEAREAR 864 - 864

Smart Edge Limited is a subsidiary of Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited ("GFHL"), and Mr. Pan is a non-executive director, the
chairman and the controlling shareholder of GFHL.

The amount due from a related company which is of trade
nature, is unsecured, interest-free and was aged within 30 days
based on the invoice date, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period.
The balance was fully settled subsequently after the year ended
31 March 2013.

Amounts Due From Subsidiaries/Amounts Due to
Subsidiaries

The Company

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-
free. The effective interest rate used to determine the fair value
of these amounts at initial recognition was 5% (2012: 5%)
per annum. The subsidiaries are not expected to repay the
advances within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period and the balances are classified as non-current.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The Company’s amounts due from subsidiaries and amounts
due to subsidiaries of HK$5,995,200,000 and HK$139,823,000
respectively (2012: HK$6,167,452,000 and HK$129,884,000
respectively) are denominated in HKD, a currency other than
the functional currency of the Company.

137

29.

BEERAAASREM(KE)ERARA(S
REF) ZHBRR  BELENADRERZ
FERITES - TEREBBR -

Y —HREARFERESEE SR
2R RERBEHMRREZAH KRR R30
B AIEEWER ARG - REE—F
—=FZA=+t-HLEFEER ERCEERK
a1 -

FE U BB A R RIR, B A R

RIE

ZNN|

KM BARRBREERARRE - BIFEE
ZEFRBERERERR 2 A EZERFENE
R5%(ZF——4%F : 5%) ° et ZEWMBA A
TERHmERRET T —EAAREERR M
BRAGRIIEIERBARA -

NHERRFRARERT 2R RAREKX

o

Mg =

A1l 45,995,200,0007% 7T K 139,823,000 %
TT(=ZZE—=F : 5 5A6,167,452,000/8 7t &
129,884,000/ 7T ) + JHLAZR A AL RE & HE LA S
ZERHEITLEE -

AN B e BT B B R IR K R A P B R AR
B
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

30. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group's cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash, bank
balances and time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in currencies other than RMB, the functional
currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2

A

ents 4 & Bt 7 3} & Mt

0. RERREEEY

BERBELESEY

AEERSERSSENOERS - RITAT
RREMAAZEARZEHER - AEE
AREEEEN L EEARK TSN Z KW

BzRERBSEEVHIINT

AUD usb HKD
BT P BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHTT FHTT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEERBY
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=5=H=+—H 61 55,457 1,811
At 31 March 2012 R—_ZE——F=H=+—H 60 6,100 17,320
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents that are RATAENGEEES ARBUIN BT EZ
denominated in currencies other than RMB, the functional ReEMREEEYEFIMT :
currency of the Company are set out below:
usb HKD
ESm BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAxT
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBEEEY
At 31 March 2013 N=B—=H=HA=+—H 34 1,127
At 31 March 2012 R-E——F=A=+—H 34 15,879

The Group and the Company’s bank balances carry interest at
market rates which range from 0.01% to 0.4% (2012: 0.01%
to 0.5%) per annum.

®
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 E#lZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

31. Trade and Other Payables

An aged analysis of trade payables, presented based on the

31. BRI R E AR IR

RBERAR - BNERRBEEZAH2HR2E

invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is set out as BOMEIAT ¢
follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE ZANE|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g-=F —T——F IZEBE-=F —ZE——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FET FHET
0-90 days 0Z£90H 1,407,946 252,541 - -
91-180 days 91£180H - - - -
Over 180 days 180H LA 1,881 1,959 - =
Total trade payables FET RN AERR 1,409,827 254,500 - -
Construction cost payables JEAH SRR AN ZRIE (M 5
(Note a) a) 1,192,142 1,070,770 - -
Retention payables (Note b) FEHREE T2 R E (M
b) 473,797 244,444 - _
Dividend payable FERIRE 1,102 1,102 1,102 1,102
Other payables (Note c) Eoh e st (B ac) 212,477 189,349 2,383 521
Deposit received in advance Taliz® (Ffiizrd)
(Note d) 337,662 332,991 - -
Polo club membership fee BRSREgEER
received in advance 61,490 - - -
Others (Note e) B (P zke) 97,047 = - =
3,785,544 2,093,156 3,485 1,623
Notes: B et -
(a) Construction cost payables represented the payables on construction (@) ENEEXAFEEREMEARBEEREREY
costs incurred for the development of investment properties and hotel FEBRMEE 2 RIS EREERA
and polo club properties.
(b) Retention payables are expected to be paid after twelve months from (b) FERMRE IIZFIATR KBRS BAREFT+=EA
the end of the reporting period upon the expiry of the retention BIRBEIBES S BN -
periods in accordance with the respective contracts.
Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @ SIRMEREIRARAT FR 2013
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31. Trade and Other Payables — continued

Notes: — continued

(0

(d)

(e)

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the amount of the
Group mainly represented consideration payable of RMB89,912,000
(equivalent to HK$112,444,000) (2012: RMB89,912,000 (equivalent
to HK$110,889,000)) in relation to the acquisition of a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin Investment Company Limited
(“Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin”) during the year ended 31 March 2009;
Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin has been merged with Goldin Properties (Tianjin)
Company Limited during the year ended 31 March 2011. The amount
was unsecured and repayable on demand.

Deposit received in advance represented the deposit of
RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$337,662,000) (2012:
RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$332,991,000)) received from
Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding during the year ended 31 March 2009. The
amount is unsecured and interest-free. Details of such deposit received
in advance is set out in note 20.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has received
the amount of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to HK$100,048,000)
(2012: nil) from REFFIMEXEEEIEZ EE which represented
the prepayment of construction cost of education facilities being
developed by the Group on behalf of XKEFHHFMEZEREIREELZS
@ and the project management fee paid to the Group amounting to
RMB77,600,000 (equivalent to HK$97,047,000) and RMB2,400,000
(equivalent to HK$3,001,000), respectively. The Group expected
to complete the construction in December 2013. As at 31 March
2013, the outstanding balance represented such prepayment of
construction cost of education facilities which is used to offset the
relevant construction costs incurred for the development of the
education facilities by the Group. In addition, the project management
fee received was included in other payables in which the amount is
amortised on straight-line basis over the construction period to profit
or loss.

©

2

3. BNRRRAMENMRE - &

BfeE - — &

(c)

R=ZE—=F=A=t+—HEKR=ZF—=F=A
=t+t—HB AEEEHSBEEEAENEBE_TTAN
F=A=+—RHUEEEARKEZERBRRX
EERRRREARAR([RESRER]) 2/E
AR E A R 889,912,000 7t (48 5 7 112,444,000
BIL)(ZF—=F : AR#¥S89,912,0007T (FHEFR
110,889,000/ 7)) : RERBRFBENBE=Z
——&=A=t+—BILFERNESRHBE(KE)R
RARIE B o R EAEKIERARERKEE -

BRILEABE-_ZETNFEF=RA=T—HILEE
HRZBRERIEAIEE AR 270,000,0007T
(fHE57337,662,0008 L) (=T —=4F : AR
270,000,0007T (#%14332,991,000/7T) ) * % 7kA
THEEE KR L o s FBNUE S FEIEE AT 20 -

BE-T—=F=-A=1+—BLFER  ~5H
WEREREFNRKMEXEREREEZEGEARE
80,000,000 (#HE 74 100,048,000/87C) (ZZE——
F:T)2HE - HREREMANEERRRES
BMEXEREEZESMEZHE R EER
AN AR #77,600,0007T (48& 7297,047,000% 7T ) &
MAEE S (FIEAEEE R ARK2,400,0007T (18
H143,001,000/87T) - REBEEAZIRER T
—=F+-AxK - R=ZE—=%=A=+—H "
BB BRI E e 2 T FREER AN - FALAIK S
REBEHABERERMEE ZHBRZERE - 3
Sh o Wz EE EEBAEREEEMENRIEL
o WHREBEARIRE SRR IEBE PR -
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31. Trade and Other Payables — continued

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

3. BERARREEARE - &

NS EERDEER NI EBREL
REBENERR R EMENREBERNT

usbD HKD

o BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT

At 31 March 2013 R=2—=%=H=+—H 1,712 3,402
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 44 1,623

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

The Company’s other payables that are denominated in
currency other than the functional currencies of the Company
are set out below:

AEBREVBEBRERBR - INEREZ AR
NHENMEERARNEE -

UARRAINBEE B AN 2 B BB Z AR A
HAGREFIRDT

HKD

BT

HK$’000

FA&T

At 31 March 2013 R-B—=%=HA=+—H 3,402
At 31 March 2012 R-—ZE——F£=H=+—H 1,623

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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32. Amounts Due to Related Companies

32.

2

PR BRE R RIRIA

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
= —ET-——-F ZZEB-=H —T——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FABT FET FHT
Goldin Equities Limited =R (EBEH)BR AT - 27,805 - 27,805
Matsunichi Goldbase Global MNESEBR(EER)
(Management) Limited BRAT 1,382 - 1,382 -
MBEEREEROFIDER AR MLASBEECRI)
BRAR] 1,863 - - _
Goldin Group (Investment) SHREFEGEE)GR AT
Limited 9,637 64,278 9,637 64,278
12,882 92,083 11,019 92,083
The Group REH

MBEEZRE CEYD AR AR is ultimately owned by Mr. Pan,
the Director and Chairman of the Company, who is also the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 March 2013, the amount of HK$1,863,000 (2012: nil)
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group and The Company

Goldin Equities Limited (“Goldin Equities”), Matsunichi
Goldbase Global (Management) Limited (“Matsunichi
Goldbase Global”) and Goldin Group (Investment) Limited
("Goldin Group (Investment)”) are ultimately owned by Mr.
Pan, the Director and Chairman of the Company who is also
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. As at 31
March 2013, the balance due to Goldin Group (Investment),
the immediate holding company of the Company, represents
interest payable on the shareholder’s loan granted to the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2013, while the
balance as at 31 March 2012 represented the interest payable
on the convertible bonds of the Company held by Goldin
Group (Investment) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

As at 31 March 2013, the amount of HK$11,019,000 (2012:
HK$64,278,000) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on contractual dates. As at 31 March 2012, the amount of
HK$27,805,000 was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

142

WA BB HE R BR AT BAAAEER
IRELERKER B LENMARARREK
PRARARE -

R-ZZT—=F=F=+—H ' 581,863,000/
TL(ZE—ZF : ) REERR - 2B RERE

REBRARNE
=IR(EHF)ERAR(ERES]) - RESE
RI(EE)ARAR([RBEERR ) LEIR
SERE)ERAR([RRER(RE) A
ARREERIFEBLELEREER  BELED
REARBZEEBRBER R-_F—=F=H
=1+—B BNRREEGRE)(ARAZHE
ERAT) 2 ERIEBE T —=F=A=1—
HIEFEAREBEERBRERZ EMNFHE -
MR _E——F=A=t—RZEREEE_
E-_HF=A=+-HIFEANSREBAR
B AR B AHRRESZ EBAME -

RZZE—=F=ZA=+—H ' 811,019,000
BIL(ZZF— —4F : 64,278,000/ 7T ) /A 1
BB RARSGHEHHESRE R_T——F
—A=+—8 ' 7XIE27,805,000/5 T A& £ K
1 BB RERERERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZE—=Z—

32. ENREER TR

REBRARNRAEBEEE
ZEEHEZ NSRRI

32. Amounts Due to Related Companies — continued RIE — &
BEE I DASN

The Group’s and the Company’s amounts due to related BB I B
AEFINT -

companies that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out

below:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE PN
usD HKD usD HKD
E BT EY BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET BT FABT
At 31 March 2013 R-EB—=%
=HA=+—H 11,500 1,382 9,637 1,382
At 31 March 2012 RZZE——
=ER=T—E = 92,083 = 92,083
33. Bank Borrowing 33. RITER
2013 2012
—B-=F —ZET——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Carrying amount repayable*: FEERARE(E™
Within one year —FR 42,208 -
More than one year, but not exceeding B —FEIPRMF
two years 56,277 -
More than two years, but not more than R EED R AE
five years 168,831 -
More than five years AR T 70,346 -
337,662 -
Less: Amount due within one year shown under g : REI&EE FrR—F N2
current liabilities RIE (42,208) -
Amount shown under non-current liabilities EREEEER FRAOE 295,454 -

*  The amount due is based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * ZEHFRIE A Bk R P B TR E B K B R % -

loan agreement.
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33. Bank Borrowing — continued

2

33. BITER — &

2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHT

Unsecured bank loan IR T A

337,662 =

During the year, the Group obtained a new unsecured bank
loan in the amount of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$337,662,000) (2012: Nil). Such bank loan carries interest
at market rate of 7.82% per annum and is repayable in
instalments over a period of 7 years to 2019. The proceed was
used to finance the daily operation of hotel and polo club.

The bank borrowing of the Group is denominated in RMB, the
functional currency of the relevant group entity.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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34. Obligations Under Finance Leases 3. MEHEER
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
REXNEESHE BEXNHEEEZRE
2013 2012 2013 2012

—B-=F —F—_F ZZB-=F —FT—_F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FTHER FET FHERT FHBT
THE GROUP EH
Amounts payable under finance RIZFIEAERE 2
leases: BF
Within one year —%FR 105 114 72 81
In the second to fifth year F_EZERF(BRE
inclusive HEMWE) 384 228 330 201
489 342 402 282
Less: Future finance charges B RREEE A (87) (60) - -
Present value of lease obligations FHE(&E#% 2 IR1E 402 282 402 282
Less: Amount due for settlement & : —FREIHEE
within one year REE (72) (81)
Amount due for settlement after —%41&2|Hi(EE R E
one year 330 201
The lease terms are five years. Interest rates are fixed at the HERRAF - MEREHBHARE - IEHE
contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and ENFAEEERELE  WETVIEAAHEX
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental A E 2 ZHE ©
payments.
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35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives)

On 28 August 2007, convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal value of approximately HK$1,418,704,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds due 2012"”) were issued by the Company
to shareholders. The convertible bonds were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The convertible bonds were unsecured,
carry interest at 7.5% per annum and matured on 28 August
2012. Interest was repayable semi-annually after the date
of issue of the convertible bonds. The effective interest rate
was 20% per annum. The Convertible Bonds due 2012 with
principal value of HK$7,479,987 (2012: HK$1,325,678,682)
were converted into 2,137,139 (2012: 378,765,336) ordinary
shares of the Company during the year (note 38(b)). A principal
amount of HK$50,503,000 in outstanding Convertible Bonds
due 2012 was redeemed by the Company at 115% on the
maturity date at approximately HK$58,078,000.

On 21 January 2011, convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal value of approximately HK$4,911,339,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds due 2014 ") were issued by the Company
to shareholders. The convertible bonds are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The convertible bonds are unsecured, carry
interest at 8% per annum and will mature on 21 January 2014.
Interest is repayable semi-annually after the date of issue of
convertible bonds. The effective interest rate is 19.41% per
annum. The Convertible Bonds due 2014 with principal value
of HK$288 (2012: HK$4,684,602,708) were converted into 60
(2012: 975,958,896) ordinary shares of the Company during
the year (note 38(b)).

The proceeds received from the issue of the convertible bonds
had been split into liability component, conversion option
derivative, and equity participants reserve, if any. The excess of
the fair value of the Convertible Bonds due 2012 to all bond
holders over the proceeds received from the issue of convertible
bonds was charged to equity participant reserve. The liability
component and the conversion option derivatives of the
Convertible Bonds due 2012 and the Convertible Bonds due
2014 were both measured at fair value on initial recognition.
The balance of the equity participant reserve in relation to
the issuance of Convertible Bonds due 2012 at the amount
of HK$7,186,000 has been transferred to retained earnings
of the Company during the year upon the redemption of the
Convertible Bonds due 2012.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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35. EJE&H’E%%(@%R@EHE’?}TE

TH)

RZZFEZLFNAZF+/\B » XARMAREZE
TR G R4 A 1,418,704,0007% JT 2 Al # i
EBEHF(ZE——F2HTRRES ) - 7Rk
BEHFBTITEHE - Al RRES BEER - UF
B75%: 8 WHR=_F—=—F/\A=+/\BE|
H o BETAMRESE AR A FLEE
BHE - BREFNRE20% - FR - A& EE
57,479,98778 L (—Z——4 : 1,325,678,682
B2 —E——FHHARREFELRE
2,137,1390% (=& — — 4 : 378,765,336% ) /&
A A)E AR (FI5E38(b)) ° A€ #850,503,0007%
TLZMAITE =T — —F R BT R E 5 R A
A TR B HA B #115% LA #758,078,0005% 7T &
@ o

RZT—F—A=+—8  AAR]AKEE
1THARE F#) 54,911,339,00078 7T 2 Al AR (&
HF(ZZ—NFRNHATRBKRES ) - TRRE
HLABTTEME - AIRRERAEERE  UFS
8%iTE ' R =_E—WF—A=—+—RHEIH-
MEBITAIRRESE BRsT - AEXFEER
B BEREMERE19.41% - FR - KA£%8288
BIL(ZT— -4 : 4,684,602,70887T) 2 —
T F AR ESE R R AR (=ZF
— —4F : 975,958,896 % ) AN A &) L 38 A% (B
38(h)) °

BEITIRRESMKEZFIEREES AE
B ~ HIREESTA T A RIRARRE A
(nE) - MEEEFFEARTZ_ZE——F
EIfg AT AR E 5 2 A FEBH B TR E
HFRTBMEFTBRIE 2D + RIRAN2 8 AR
HEAHR - —E——FHHABRRESFR T
—UFRHTRRES 2 BEBS R H LR
MTETERBRERFYEAFEE - F
A BT ——_F R RRES 2R
N2 A 45847,186,000/8 T E R ER — =
—ZFHHRRESREREADRRE &
)
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35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

The movements of the liability component and conversion
option derivatives of the convertible bonds for the year are set

out as below:

B OUEREHR(BRABRBESTE
TH)-#&

A EScBERO RABRBETETAZ
FREBETIAT -

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

FRERAAR
Convertible Bonds due 2012 Convertible Bonds due 2014
ZE-CHIBTARES ZE-MENHTRRES
Conversion Conversion
Liability option Liability option
component  derivative  Sub-total component derivative  Sub-total Total

HamE
8f&Hs  f1£IR
HK$'000  HK$'000

TAL TAL

SE
Mt BERS IR N @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000
TAL TEL TAL TAL TAL

At 1 April 2011 W=E——FNA—-A

Interest expenses MEX

Interest paid/payable Bit /S

Exchange gain recognised in -~ NEREAZER,
profit or loss U

Exchange realignment B 5 %

Changes in fair value AFEZE)

Converted during the year ERERE
-byissue of 1,354,724,232  —EBE(T1,354,724,2328%

1,358,984 349,293
252,813
(105,802) =

(49,449) =
49,449 12,710
- (345672

1,708,277 3,887,798 883,005 4,770,863 6,479,140
252,813 715,293 715,293 968,106

(105,802)  (460,805) - (460,805)  (566,607)
(49,449)  (141,464) - (141464)  (190913)
62,159 141,464 32,130 173,5% 235,753
(345,672) - (527380) (527,380)  (873,052)

ordinary shares (note 38) LEkR(fi3s) (1,442,169) (13,631) (1,455,800) (3,950,875)  (365,571) (4,316,446) (5,772,246)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——5=A=+-H 63,826 2,700 66,526 191,411 22,244 213,655 280,181
Interest expenses yills§- 4,941 - 4,941 36,328 - 36,328 41,269
Interest paid/payable Eff/ RIS (2,139) = 2,139 (21,608) - (21,608)  (23,747)
Exchange gain recognised i~ NERHEAZELR,
profit or loss Wig - - - (2,685) - (2,685) (2,685)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR - - - 2,685 311 2,99 2,99
Changes in fair value ATEEE) - (1.817) (1,817) - (2,533) (2,533) (4.350)
Converted during the year FRE H 8
- by issue of 2,137,199 —ER%172,137,1998%
ordinary shares (note 38) Lidk(fiE3s) (8,550) (883) (9,433) - - - (9,433)
Redemption upon maturity BB ) (58,078) - (58,078) - - - (58,078)

At 31 March 2013 R=Z2-=%ZA=1-H

- 206,131 20022 226,153 226,153
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are set out as
follows:

Convertible Bonds due 2012

Conversion

At the option of the holders, the convertible bonds would
be converted into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company
on any business day during the period between the third
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bonds and
the maturity date, at an initial conversion price of HK$6 per
share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price should be adjusted downwards on the
date falling 6 months from the date of issue of the convertible
bonds and every 6 months thereafter (the “Reset Date”) to the
arithmetic average price of the Company’s share for each of
the 30 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the Reset
Date, provided that the adjusted conversion price shall never
be below HK$3.5, subject to the customary adjustments such
as for sub-divisions, consolidation and reductions in the share
capital of the Company.

On 27 August 2008, 27 February 2009 and 27 August 2009,
the conversion price had been reset to HK$5.86, HK$4.08 and
HK$3.5 per share, respectively.

Redemption

No convertible bonds may be redeemed by the Company and
the holders prior to the maturity date. Any convertible bonds
which remained outstanding by 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time)
on the maturity date (i.e. 28 August 2012) were redeemed by
the Company at 115% of its outstanding principal amount at
HK$50,503,000 during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

Convertible Bonds due 2012 — continued

Redemption - continued

The conversion option derivative was carried at fair value at
the end of each reporting period with change in fair value
recognised in profit and loss. At 31 March 2012, the fair value
of the conversion option derivative in the convertible bonds
was HK$2,700,000 (2013: Nil), and was calculated using the
Binominal model. Details of the variables and assumptions of
the model were as follows:

35. Eﬁﬂﬁ%%(@?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi

1) - &
—E-—FIHABRES -&

e - &
HIaETAE T ARSHRERRZ AFET
R A EESHNERER R-_T——F=
B=+—HB AR EH L REETETA
NF{EA2,700,0008TT(ZF—=F : #&) + J)
AZIEAEAFE - ZEXFTAZE R REF
(ELUNNE

31 March

2012

—E——F

=A=+—H

Share price A& HK$2.997% 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$3.50/% 7T
Remaining life R4 BA 0.41 yearstF
Risk-free rate A G B3R 0.12%
Expected volatility TEER R i@ 62%
Expected dividend yield TE BAAR B e 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the date of
valuation for prior year.

Convertible Bonds due 2014

Conversion

At the option of the holders, the convertible bonds will be
converted into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company on
any business day from the period commencing on the 30th day
from and excluding the date of issue of the convertible bonds
and ending on the 10th day prior to and excluding the maturity
date (both dates inclusive), at an initial conversion price of
HK$6 per share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price shall be adjusted downwards on the
Reset Date thereafter to the arithmetic average price of the
Company'’s share for each of the 30 consecutive trading days
immediately prior to the Reset Date, provided that the adjusted
conversion price shall never be below HK$4.8, subject to the
customary adjustments such as for sub-divisions, consolidation
and reductions in the share capital of the Company.

On 20 July 2011, the conversion price has been reset to HK$4.8
per share.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

Convertible Bonds due 2014 — continued

Redemption

No convertible bonds may be redeemed by the Company and
the holders prior to the maturity date. Any convertible bonds
which remain outstanding by 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
the maturity date shall be redeemed by the Company at 100%
of its then outstanding principal amount.

The conversion option derivative is carried at fair value at
the end of each reporting period with change in fair value
recognised in profit and loss. At 31 March 2013 and 31 March
2012, the fair values of the conversion option derivative in the
Convertible Bonds are HK$20,022,000 and HK$22,244,000
respectively, and are calculated using the Binominal model.
Details of the variables and assumptions of the model are as
follows:

2

B.ABKRESF(BEABRPETE

TH)-#&

—E-NEFHRRES - &

L

ANA R REFEEATESRE A AT B ] 2R E
% o (FAREIHE TFUE =15 (FBRK/M)
M ARATE 2 AR E A B A A AR & R R T(E
REEZ100%E M -

RMEETETEREREHRRZ A FETD
R AFEEPNEEH®R RN_T—=F=
A=+—BR=ZFE—Z=—ZF=A=+—8 "7
BREFZABARTET AR FED R
20,022,000/ 7T % 22,244,000/ 7T * Jh A =18
LRAGE - ZBEAPTABERERRFBOT

31 March 31 March

2013 2012

—E-=F —T——F

=ZA=+—H =A=+—H

Share price A fE HK$4.557% T HK$2.99/8 7T
Exercise price EE HK$4.878 T HK$4.87 7T
Remaining life TIERF A 0.8 yearfF 1.8 years®
Risk-free rate aEE kR S = 0.14% 0.21%
Expected volatility TRERR 18 27.7% 49.2%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR Sz 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the date of
valuation for prior year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option
Derivatives) — continued

Convertible Bonds due 2012 and Convertible Bonds due
2014 held by related parties

As at 31 March 2013, the total principal amount of the
outstanding Convertible Bonds due 2014 was HK$226,736,000
(2012: HK$226,736,000), of which Matsunichi Goldbase
Global held HK$90,000,000 (2012: HK$90,000,000). Upon
full conversion of the Convertible Bonds due 2014 at the
conversion price of HK$4.80 (2012: HK$4.80) per share (as
adjusted on 20 July 2011), 18,750,000 (2012: 18,750,000)
shares will be issued to Matsunichi Goldbase Global. GFHL is
the ultimate holding company of Matsunichi Goldbase Global,
and Mr. Pan is also a non-executive director, the chairman
and the controlling shareholder of GFHL. Accordingly, Mr. Pan
is deemed to be interested in the convertible bonds held by
Matsunichi Goldbase Global.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, all of the Convertible
Bonds due 2012 and 2014 held by Mr. Pan and/or Goldin
Group (Investment) were converted into shares.

Loan From A Shareholder

During the year, the Group obtained an unsecured loan facility
from its substantial shareholder, Goldin Group (Investment)
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan at the
principal amount of not more than US$700 million (equivalent
to HK$5,434,380,000), comprising the amount drawn down
of approximately HK$2,568,966,000 together with undrawn
loan of approximately HK$2,865,414,000 as at 31 March
2013, which is unsecured, carries interests at a rate of 8% per
annum and is repayable on or before 26 August 2014 which is
classified as non-current.

The loan from a shareholder of the Group is denominated in
USD other than RMB, the functional currency of the relevant
group entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

2

37. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The movements in major deferred tax liabilities recognised
during the year are as follows:

37. EEBIEEE

FAECERZTRREEHARBESHODT

THE GROUP

rEE

Revaluation of

investment

properties

REYES M

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FmMA—H 869,161
Exchange realignment fE i, = 31,626
Charge to profit or loss (note 14) RIERP I (FHEE14) 17,372
At 31 March 2012 R-BE——HF=A=+—H 918,159
Exchange realignment BEE 5 EE 12,880
Charge to profit or loss (note 14) RERAPHIBR (HEE14) 213,833
At 31 March 2013 R=2—=f=A=+-—H 1,144,872

At 31 March 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$1,083,380,000 (2012: HK$628,299,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the tax
losses are losses of HK$562,810,000 (2012: HK$251,765,000)
that will expire within five years from the end of the reporting
period. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. There
were no other significant temporary differences arising during
the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Included in unexpired tax losses are tax losses of
HK$454,135,000 (2012: HK$313,087,000) that are not yet
assessed by the relevant tax authorities.

At 31 March 2013, the Company had unused tax losses of
HK$70,614,000 (2012: HK$66,418,000) available for offset
against future profits. The losses may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @

R-_ZE—=%=A=+—H8' ' ~&BXx8HH
2 BiIEE181,083,380,000/8 7T ( — & — —4F -
628,299,000/ 7T ) Al K SH AR A& ) o B R
25 ) SROR N B TR - A A kA TE S 1B R
EREERIBEE - HIBEBEBREGEREH
R ET 4 A fE i 2 E518562,810,00048 7T (=
T— —4F : 251,765,000/ 7C) © E A E518 A &
PREAGS - FASRBERRTEELEME
AERER -

RERHEBERRESNAREH BHEEENT S
2 TR TE E#8 454,135,000/ T ( Z & — — 4 -
313,087,000/ 7T ) °

R-_ZE—=%=A=+—H8' ' A2 Xx8H
i IB & 18 570,614,000 T (=T — — 4 :
66,418,00077T) + AIEIKEEARIOHE T o BIEA]
MR o R RIOHEF RN FEA - &)
WERZSHBEEERTAETEHEEE

SIRMEZERAR AR F3R 2013



BF 5 ¥R & MY &

FZA=t+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HEZE=—Z—=

38. Share Capital 38. I 2
Number of shares Share capital
REH#HE g
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f —2——F —E-=F 2%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iz TR THL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BRRE(E0.05E T, LR
Authorised: iy
At 1 April and 31 March REA-AK=A=1+-A 10,000,000,000  10,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR :
At 1 April RUA—B 3,561,464,226  1,234,951,832 178,073 61,748
Issue of new shares upon exercise of RiTfEEERER TR
share options () 2,480,763 201,307 124 10
Issue of new shares upon conversion of & H AR EH1T
convertible bonds (note 35) arﬁJM (PfzE35) (b) 2,137,199  1,354,724.232 107 67,736
Issue of new shares upon placement of — EE ER{HE{THR
shares © - 236,000,000 - 11,800
Issue of new shares on rights issue R RE(THR D (d - 735,586,855 - 36,779
At 31 March W=R=1-H 3,566,082,188  3,561,464,226 178,304 178,073
Notes: B e
(@) During the year ended 31 March 2013, 2,480,763 (2012: 201,307) (@) HE_Z—Z="F=-A=1+—HIEFE " %E\JJ‘%\:%

new shares of HK$0.05 each in the Company were issued at prices
of HK$1.31, HK$3.27, HK$3.14 and HK$3.72 (2012: HK$3.17) per
share upon exercise of share options granted on 28 September 2005,
3 August 2009, 21 April 2010 and 10 August 2010, respectively (2012:
share options granted on 21 April 2010).

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the convertible bondholders
converted principal value of HK$7,479,987 of Convertible Bonds
due 2012 and HK$288 of Convertible Bonds due 2014 (2012:
HK$1,325,678,682 and HK$4,684,602,708) into 2,137,139 and 60
(2012: 378,765,336 and 975,958,896) ordinary shares of HK$0.05
each at the conversion price of HK$3.50 and HK$4.80, respectively.
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38.

39.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

F=ZHA=t+—HILFE

Share Capital — continued

Notes: — continued

(¢ On 16 January 2012, Mr. Pan, the ultimate controlling shareholder
of the Company, who is also the chairman, chief executive officer
and executive Director of the Company, sold 236,000,000 existing
shares of the Company via a share placement exercise at a price of
HK$2.06 per share, and subscribed for 236,000,000 new shares of
the Company at a price which is equivalent to the placing price in
connection with the placing. The net proceeds from the subscription
were approximately HK$481,298,000. Accordingly, the Company’s
share capital and share premium were increased by HK$11,800,000
and HK$469,498,000, respectively.

(d) Arights issue of one rights share for every two shares held by members
of the Company on the register of members became unconditional
on 20 March 2012, at an issue price of HK$2.16 per rights share,
resulting in the issue of 735,586,855 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each,
for a total cash consideration, before expenses of HK$27,805,000,
of HK$1,588,867,000. The net cash proceeds were credited to
share capital and share premium account of HK$36,779,000 and
HK$1,524,283,000, respectively.

All of the new shares issued rank pari passu with the then
existing shares of the Company in issue in all respects.

Reserves

The Group
Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 59.

Equity participants reserve represents the excess of the fair
value of the Convertible Bonds due 2012 to all shareholders
over the proceeds received from the issue of Convertible Bonds
due 2012, gain on the surrender which was granted to an
existing shareholder of the Company as at 24 November 2008,
gain/loss on sale of certain assets/liabilities to a Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company.

The balance of the equity participant reserve in relation to the
issuance of Convertible Bonds due 2012 at the amount of
HK$7,186,000 has all been transferred to retained earnings of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2013 upon the
redemption of the Convertible Bonds due 2012 on 28 August
2012, the maturity date.

®
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39.
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39. Reserves — continued

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & Z=Z—

39. e - &

=F=A=t—HILFE

The Company PiN/NET|
Retained
Share-based Equity Capital profits
Share  compensation participants redemption Translation  (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
R BA U REEH
RBEE HeftE SEAGE RE G BEGE (B3t H8) @it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
T T T T T T A
At 1 April 2011 RZE——%WA—H 3,022,067 90,031 (250,574) 173 894,280 176,023 3,932,000
Loss for the year EEER = = = - = (464,693) (464,693)
Other comprehensive income  AEF £t 2
for the year Wis - - = = 524,282 - 524,282
Total comprehensive income  AEE2EMz
(expense) for the year (F%)&® - - - - 524,28 (464,693) 59,589
Recognition of equity-settled  BEBLARALEE R
share-based payments B BERZ N - 29,135 - - - - 29,135
Exercise of share options 1T{EERRRE 1,058 (430) - - - - 628
Lapse of share options BEREEN - (2,952) - - - 2,952 -
Conversion of convertible bonds 5 AT R E% 5,704,510 - 188,624 - - (188,624) 5,704,510
Issue of new shares upon REERN T
placement of shares Fkin 474,360 - - - - - 474,360
Transaction costs directly REERNET
attributable to issue of HRPEEDH
new shares upon RAMA
placement of shares (4.862) - - - - - (4,862)
Issue of new shares upon R RETHRG
rights issue 1,552,088 - - - - - 1,552,088
Transaction costs directly RERETHRH
attributable to issue of EEEvAY)
new shares upon rights issue ~~ F & (27,805) - - - - - (27,805)
At 31 March 2012 R=B——%=f
=1-H 10,721,416 115,784 (61,950) 173 1,418,562 (474,342) 11,719,643
Loss for the year REEEE - - - - - (992,868) (992,868)
Other comprehensive income  AFE £ 2E
for the year Wz - - - - 716,334 - 716,334
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2EME
(expense) for the year (AR - - - - 716,334 (992,868) (276,534)
Recognition of equity-settled  BELARALE A
share-based payments RABER 25 - 67,767 - - - - 67,767
Exercise of share options TierRiE 8,010 (2,892) - - - - 5118
Lapse of share options EIRERH - (8,095) - - - 8,095 =
Conversion of convertible bonds ¥ ik E% 9326 = 1,064 = = (1,064) 9,326
Redemption of convertible bonds BT &2 - - 7,186 - - (7,186) -
At 31 March 2013 W=8-z%=§8
=1-H 10,738,752 172,564 (53,700) 173 2,134,89% (1,467,365) 11,525,320
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39.

40.
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Reserves — continued

The Company — continued

At 31 March 2013, the Company’s reserves consisted of
accumulated losses of approximately HK$1,467,365,000 (2012:
HK$474,342,000).

Share-Based Payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
participants.

Under the share option scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options as an incentive to selected
participants, including Directors and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company at the price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be lower than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme.
An option may be exercised at any time within ten years from
the date, upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance.

The offer of a grant of share options under the scheme may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer by the
grantee. The vesting and exercisable period of the share option
granted is determinable at the entire discretion of the Board of
Directors but the exercisable period will not exceed a period of
ten years immediate after acceptance of grant.

®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

40. Share-Based Payments — continued 4. UBRBAER AR -8
The following tables disclose details of the Company'’s share TEREBFAARREREFEREBRFE=E
options and movements in such holdings during the year: e
Details of share options held by employees (other than BARREE (BEEHRINFE 2BREF TN
Directors) of the Company are as follows: T
Number of share options
JEREHE
Subscription price per share
SHAEE
After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before adjustment adjustment at during during during at
Date of grant adjustment 2007 2012 Exercisable period 142012 the year the year the year 31.3.2013
R=%-zf R=%-zZF
ERtE - mA-A =A=1-h
RLEH EL 3] il #EE R HAGE  FASRE  EREAR  FABAN HALTE
HKS HKS HKS
o i A
(Note 1 (Note 1 (Note 1
and2) and 2) and2)
(k) (MR (WER2)
5.2.2004 130 1.20 119 52.2005t04.2.2014 678,745 - - - 678,745
“ZZMF-ARA “ETRE_ARRE
“Z-ME-AMA
20.4.2004 1.54 142 141 20.4.2004t0 19.4.2014 572,945 - - - 572,945
ZSTMEMA=TA “TIMEMA=THE
ZE-MEMATAR
28.9.2005 143 132 131 289.2005t027.9.2015 1,433,968 - (1,432,000 - 1,968
“ZRREAAZTAR ZZTRFNAZTIAR
ZE-RFNAZTER
21.11.2007 - 6.56 650  27.11.2007 0 26.11.2017 8,072,721 - - - 8,072,721
ZERHET-AZ A S i =
S 2 e
3.8.2009 - 330 327 3820101028019 1,286,949 - (45,409) (21,190) 1,220,350
“ZENFN\A=H “2-Z5\A=RE
“2-1E/\AZR
3.8.2009 = 330 327 3820110282019 2,122,110 - (139,252) (45,408) 1,937,450
ZERNENAZR “Z——%\A=RZE
“Z-NENAZA
3.8.2009 - 330 327 382012t02.8.2019 2,829,517 - (171,609) (60,546) 2,597,362
“TENFNA=A ZZ-Z§\A=HE
“E-nENAZR
2142010 - 317 314 21.42011020.4.2020 1,567,676 - (254,286) (24.217) 1,289,173
“F-FFRAZT-H 23 —HPACT-BR
ZE2CRFMAZTH
2142010 - 317 314 2142012t020.4.2020 4,462,178 - (251,560) (2,89,797) 1,313,821
“2-ZEMA=T-A “3-“fMA=t-HZ
ZECREMAZTH
21.4.2010 - 317 314 214.20131020.4.2020 5,949,669 - - (4,060,626) 1,889,043
“5-TEMA=T-A ) e =
“Z-REMAZTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x & Bf 7% ¥k & M &
For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE
40. Share-Based Payments — continued 40. ARG RER 2K - &
Number of share options
EREZA
Subscription price per share
SHAEE
After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before adjustment  adjustment at during during during at
Date of grant adjustment 2007 2012 Exercisable period 142012 the year the year the year 3132013
R=B-=F H=%-=F
ZBBtE  Z%-f mA-A =B=t-H
RiLAH BRA L4 #BE RS HAE  EASRE  EREAE  ERBAN BRI
HK§ HK$ HKS
BT o BT
(Note 1 (Note 1 (Note 1
and2) and2) and2)
(MFR2)  (WFk2)  (HF1R2)
10.8.2010 - 375 372 108.2011109.8.2020 481,333 - (9,081) (105,954) 366,298
“E-Z5\ATH “T—E\ATRZ
ZZZT5N\ANA
10.8.2010 - 375 372 108.2012t09.8.2020 956,614 - (9,081) (581,235) 366,298
“Z-ZENATA “T-ZE)\ATRZ
ZZZTEN\AAA
10.8.2010 - 375 372 108.2013109.8.2020 1,275,499 - - (774,989) 500,510
ZT-3FN\ATA ZF-§\ATRE
“2ZE/\ANA
2132012 - - 269 279.201210263.2022 8,259,976 - - (533332 7,126,644
ZB-CF=A-ttH ZBCEARCTLRE
S 3y =
2132012 - - 269 27.12.20131026.3.2022 8,259,976 - - (533,332) 7,126,644
S )l TE-SEfCACTHEE
i S e Y
2132012 - - 269 273.20151026.3.2022 8,260,048 - - (533,336) 7,726,112
“F-C#=A-ttA ZF-RESACHERE
ZZ-FZA-tAA
56,469,930 - (2312,218)  (10,170,962) 43,986,690
No. of exercisable share options
TirRERESR 26,143,781
Weighted average exercise price
METEHRE HKS3 4057 - HKS203ET  HKS3ASET  HKS3SOET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & Bt #% ¥k &
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

40. Share-Based Payments — continued

Details of share options held by the Directors are as follows:

40. AR B EME 2 K - &

RMESHE ZBREFBNT ¢

Number of share options
HEHE
Subscription price per share Reclassified
BHIRE from
After After “Directors” Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Before adjustment adjustment Outstanding  to "Other during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment 2007 2012 Exercisable period at1.4.2012 participants” the year the year the year at31.3.2013
R=B-2&  @[EE) R-8-Z&
ZERtE -%-IF BA-B EXBER ZR=1-A
RHAH BEH  RER BER AR HAGE [EHSEE] FASRE FREARE  FAEER HAGE
HKS$ HK$ HK$
AL AL BT
(Note 1 (Note!  (Notel
and2) and2) and 2) (Note 3)
(W k) (WF1R2) (W1R2) Giz)
382009 - 330 327 3820100282019 821,581 - - - - 821,581
“ZENE/\AZR Z5-%F)\A=RZ
“E-nENAZR
382009 - 330 327 3820110282019 1,755,816 (181,636) - - - 1574180
“ZENE/\AZR “F——%\A=RZ
“E-NENAZR
382009 - 330 327 3820120282019 2,341,088 (242,181) - - - 2098907
“ZENE/\AZR ZF-C§)\A=RZ
“E-NENAZR
2132012 - - 269 27.9.2012026.3.2022 2,133,331 (133,333) - - - 1999998
“E-CF=A-1tA 2 EAAZTHER
i 5 oy Y
2132012 - - 269 27.12.201310263.2022 2,133,331 (133,333) - - - 1999998
i ey Bld ZT-ZEt-A-tHRE
i 5 oy Y
2132012 - - 269 27.320151026.3.2022 2,133,338 (133,334) - - - 2,000,004
ZE-ZE=RAZTtA ZF-RF=A-TtAZ
i 5 oy
11,318,485 (823,817) = = - 10,494,668
No. of exercisable share
options
AR BRELR 6,494,666
Weighted average
exercise price
MEFEE HKS2967%87  HK$2.99%TC - - - HKS2.94%7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & & —ZT—=F=—A=1+—HILFE

40. Share-Based Payments — continued 4. UBRBABER AR -8
Details of share options held by other participants of the HAAARHMBEERG 2 BREFBNAT

Company are as follows:

Number of share options
HENE
Subscription price per share Redlassified
SRARE from
After After “Directors” Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Before adjustment adjustment Outstanding  to “Other during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment 2007 2012 Exercisable period at1.4.2012 participants” the year the year the year at31.3.2013
R=B-2F HIEZ|EH R=%-ZF
%3tE -8-Cf BA-B BEAAf ZA=t-H
RHAH AEy  #E% BEE AR WAGE  SEE] FRERE  FREAR  FABAN  HAOR
HKS HKS HKS
AT AL BT
(Note?  (Note1  (Note!
and2) and2) and2) (Note 3)
(M k2) (WaHika) (MR2) (MtzE3)
5.2.2004 130 1.20 119 5.22005t04.22014 2,682,037 = = = - 2,682,037
“ZIME-ARA “ZZRF-RRAZ
“2-PE-AMA
20.4.2004 154 142 141 204200410 19.4.2014 311,037 = = = = 371,037
“ETMERACTA “ZEMEMA-THE
ZE-MEMATAA
3.8.2009 = 330 327 3820100282019 2,123,305 = = = - 2123305
“ZENE/\AZR “2-TEN\A=RZ
“Z-NENAZR
3.8.2009 = 330 327 3820110282019 2,225,041 181,636 - (60,545) - 2306132
“EENENA=R “Z——%)\R=RZ
“2-NENAZH
3.8.2009 = 330 327 3820120282019 2,966,728 242,181 = (80,727) - 312818
“EENENA=R :T “§\R=RZ
“Z-NENAZR
2142010 = 317 314 21.4201110204.2020 3453014 - - 27213) (15136) 3,410,665
“T-TEMAZT-H ZE——5MA-+-A%
ZECREMAZTH
2142010 = 317 314 21.4201210204.2020 3,590,314 = = = (15136) 3575178
“E2-ZENA-T-H St} oy 2
"2 TEMA-HH
2142010 = 317 314 214201310 204.2020 4,787,166 - - - (20,182) 4,766,984
“2-TEMA-T-A “2-¥MAZT-RZ
:T TEMAZTH
10.8.2010 = 375 372 10.8.2011109.8.2020 605,454 = = = = 605,454
“2-Z£/\A1A “F——F\ATRZE

“2ZE/\AAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHlZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

40. Share-Based Payments — continued 40. AR BER IR -8
Number of share options
HEHE
Subscription price per share Redlassified
SRARE from
After After “Directors” Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Before adjustment adjustment Outstanding  to "Other during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment 2007 2012 Exercisable period at1.4.2012 participants” the year the year theyear at31.3.2013
R=B-2F HIEZ|EH RZE-=£
Z%3tE -8--f BA-B BEAAf ZA=t-H
RiAH ARy BER  BER A6 WAGE  S8E| FACRE  FREAE  FREAR HAGE
HKS HKS HKS
AL AT BT
(Note1 ~ (Note!  (Note!
and2) and2) and2) (Note 3)
(k) (Wika) (MR2) (Hz53)
10.8.2010 - 375 372 10.8.2012t09.8.2020 605,454 - - - - 605,454
“2-TENATR ZE-Z§\ATRZE
ZE-ZE\ANA
10.8.2010 - 375 372 10.8.2013109.8.2020 807,273 - - - - 807,273
ZZ-ZENATA ZZ-ZENATRE
“ZZENANA
2132012 - - 269 2792012 10263.2022 10,033,322 133333 - - (16,666) 10,149,989
“E-—E-f-1{R “Z-ZENA=ftRZ
Iyl
2132012 - - 269 27.12.2013 10 26.3.2022 10,033,322 133333 - - (16,066) 10,149,989
ZE-CE-fCTtH 3 CFtA-tHRE
2 |
2132012 - - 269 27.3201510263.2022 10,033,356 133,334 - - (16,668) 10,150,022
5-ZEZR=ttA Z5-Rf=A-ttHE
Iyl
54,316,823 823,817 - (168,485) (100,454) 54,871,701
No. of exercisable share
options
TiRERESR 28,997,437
Weighted average
exercise price
METAEE HKS2.83%7  HK$2.99%TC - HKS325%T  HKS2.92BT  HKS282%T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

40. Share-Based Payments — continued

Notes:

1. As a result of the open offer issue of the Company on 22 August
2007 and rights issue on 20 March 2012, the number of share
options and the exercise prices have been adjusted in accordance
with the requirements of Rule 17.03 (13) of the Listing Rules and the
supplementary guidance issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 5 September 2005.

2. The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately preceding the
date of grant of 5 February 2004, 20 April 2004, 28 September 2005,
27 November 2007, 3 August 2009, 21 April 2010, 10 August 2010
and 27 March 2012 were HK$1.30, HK$1.48, HK$1.43, HK$6.56,
HK$3.25, HK$3.15, HK$3.71 and HK$2.69, respectively.

3. Professor Huang Xiaojian had resigned as executive Director of the
Company on 29 November 2012. Therefore, share options held by
Professor Huang Xiaojian were re-classified from the category of
“Directors” to “Other participants” on the same date.

The vesting period ends on the date the exercisable period of
the share options begins.

The vesting period for the share options granted are ranging
from one to three years from the date of grant. In addition, for
certain share options granted on 21 April 2010 and 10 August
2010, they were conditionally granted to the employees (other
than Directors) of the Company which were subject to the
achievement of the performance targets as determined by the
Board.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was
HK$4.60 (2012: HK$2.41).

Share options granted to other participants are measured
at fair values of options granted as these other participants
are providing services that are similar to those rendered by
employees.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 E#lZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

40. Share-Based Payments — continued

4. LR ABER AR -E

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model. The ZEANTFEFA-_BEAEXAE - R-T——
inputs into the model for share options granted on 27 March F=A -+t HREZBRERRE ASIE N
2012 were as follows: T
27 March
2012
—EB——F
=A=++tH
Share price as at grant date BB ARE HK$2.6978 7T
Exercise price T8 HK$2.69/8 7T
Expected volatility L] 63.2%
Remaining life Tl ah F Hp 10 yearsF
Risk-free rate 4 [ i B R 1.34%
Expected dividend yield TE B AR B as 0%
Exercise multiple B 3.44-4.20
Exit rate B = 0% —32%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the grant date
for previous three years. The exercise multiple was to account
for the early exercise behaviour of the share options granted by

the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in comprising
the fair value of share options are based on Director’s best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables

of certain subjective assumptions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

41. Retirement Benefit Schemes

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

2

M. BRBEFETE

RN EIEFR

2013 2012
—E-=F —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Contributions to mandatory provident R EAESETE
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme") ([BELTE)HK 1,349 1,022
Contributions to PRC state-managed P EFEREIERRS
pension schemes 2R 15,695 12,646
Amount charged to consolidated s 2EkEsRE
statement of comprehensive income Nk 2 &8 17,044 13,668

The Group ceased to operate the defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustee. The Group now only participates in the MPF Scheme
for all employees in Hong Kong which is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the Scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of pension schemes operated by the Chinese
local government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the relevant cost of the basic payroll of
these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contribution.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2013 E#lZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

42. Operating Lease Arrangements 12 REBPERH
The Group as lessee REBERAMEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REREHIR - NS ERE AR & 2 H &
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- HR AR NHERS 2T ¢

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2013 2012
—B2-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT
Within one year —FR 9,842 13,083
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFERF(BEEEMF) 33,608 43,378
43,450 56,461
Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 1 to 5 years. MEFHER RN T1E55F -
The Company had no significant operating lease commitments ANA B E BRI A A B AR T EAGE -
at the end of the reporting period.
43. Commitments 43. &I
THE GROUP
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=fF T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT

Expenditures contracted for but not BERTRERR ARG B HREA

provided in the consolidated e 2 Fx

financial statements in respect of:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment — EEA¥IE « BB M ERE 2,556 9,275
Development expenditure of investment EEFREYHEZ

properties under construction! EREAY 9,483,643 1,780,367
Development expenditure of properties FERRTYWEZ

under development for sale2 ERAY? 5,212,613 807,632
Construction of educational facilities EEH A R - 98,664

14,698,812 2,695,938

L Future committed capital expenditures to be incurred up to 2016. 1 BEERBEBR T —NFAEEZRRERAT -
2 Future committed capital expenditures to be incurred up to 2014. 2 ERGEUEA = T —UFE IR E Y R RE AR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

43. Commitments — continued

The Company had no significant capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period.
44, Contingent Liabilities
At 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the Company provided
a limited guarantee of HK$2,000,000 (2012: HK$2,000,000)
to a bank in respect of credit facilities granted to a subsidiary.
The aggregate amount of such credit facilities utilised by

the subsidiary at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 was
approximately HK$24,000 and HK$138,000, respectively.

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
relation to the above mentioned guarantee issued by the
Company to the bank in respect of credit facility utilised by the
subsidiary as its fair value at initial recognition is considered to
be insignificant and the Directors consider that the possibility
of the default is remote. Accordingly, no value has been
recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position.

45. Related Party Transactions

The Group's transactions with related parties are as follows:

43.

44,

45,

2

==
— ]

n

il

ZZ

AAR R ERRY BEAIERE A -

HREE

R-E—=F=A=+—BEk=-ZT——F=H
=+—H ARAARET—HRBARZEE
BhE& #EJE i A — FRER{TH 4 —182,000,000%4 7T
—F— 4 :2,000,00087C) 2 B ER -
RZE—=F=ZA=+—BR=_ZFT——-F=8
=+—H ZWBAREBREZEBEERE
FAE R R #924,0007 7T &2 138,00058 7T ©

AR ER BAAR AR EARESH 2
EEREREEZ M MRTTE D Z ERER TR
WA - RE/SEXFERERERREA
RUTEXBEZTRRED ZREEEM -
[ ARIVAN/NTR 9N b e B Yl 2k 24
o

BEALRS

REBEMEALZZHMT :

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Companies controlled by the ultimate BRAERBRREHZAF
controlling shareholder
Goldin Group (Investment) =iREEGRE)
— Interest expenses on Convertible Bonds due — T FRIHBREFR
2012 and Convertible Bonds due 2014 —TMERE AR ES 2 F B X - 463,020
— Interest expenses on loan from a shareholder*  — B &7 Fi| 85 * 32,359 -
Matsunichi Goldbase Global R A S EIRBR
— Interest expenses on Convertible Bonds — ZT—FIERRES 2
due 2014* MERXZ* 7,200 7,200

©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

45, Related Party Transactions — continued 45. EEALTRS - &
2013 2012
—B-= —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Good Vantage Trading Limited EmE S5 8RAF
— Purchase of construction materials on —UERAARAEEEEREMH
trust of the Group - 36,869
Smart Edge Limited BEARRLAR
— Project management fee income* (Note) — 15 EEBRAKA () 2,633 1,097
Dynasty Select Limited SRBEmBERRAR
— Purchase of wine products* —BEREER 7,865 =
MBEEEGER ORI BRAR] RBEEEERECRY)BRAE
— Purchase of smart phone products* —BERETFREM* 1,863 =
Goldin Equities IRES
— Placing commission expense in relation to —FRRkcREReRT*
placement of shares* - 4,862
— Underwriting commission expense in relation —HRfE eEReRT
to rights issue* - 27,805
Goldin Financial Limited RRHERRAT
— Financial advisory fee expense* — iSRRI B AR 230 600
Ultimate controlling shareholder BAERER
Mr. Pan Vi e
— Interest expenses on Convertible Bonds — T FRIHBREFR
due 2012 and Convertible Bonds due 2014 T FHE R ES 2 FI B M - 562
— Polo club membership fee income * —-SHegRBRKAx 10,000 -
*  These transactions constituted connected transactions or continuing * ZERSGERETRAFUVAEMAEZHEERS
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. S ERER S ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

45, Related Party Transactions — continued 45. EEALTRS -8

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2012, Goldin Properties (Construction
Management) Limited (the “Project Manager”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a project management agreement (the
“Project Management Agreement”) with Smart Edge Limited (the
“Developer”), a subsidiary of GFHL which is ultimately controlled by Mr.
Pan, in respect of the appointment of the Project Manager by the Developer
to manage the construction and development of a piece of land parcel
located in Hong Kong (the “Project”) on behalf of the Developer from 1
November 2011 until the date of settlement of the final account in respect
of the Project which is expected to be a date not later than the end of
February 2017. The estimated aggregate project management fee paid
and payable by the Developer to the Project Manager under the Project
Management Agreement shall amount to approximately HK$11,700,000.

Details of the Group’s related parties balances are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and respective
notes.

Wi

REBE—ZT——F=A=+—ALFE  ARRIZENE
AR -REYME(BRETIRER)ARAR(HEEEAD
HERem(HELERREN) ZHBAR - BEERA
AR\ DIV ER EEGE((EEERHR]) A
EERERZAEEEEA  RREERETE—BLR
HAzR([ZEE DZESRERE A= —F+—
A—BREZBEAZEEARAENBHBFTER=Z
—tFZAR)IE - FREAREER ERRERD N RERS
THEHEEBAZMEIEREEES$£4511,700,0007%
58 @

ERAEEREALTRRBZFBNES N
AR IRR AR RAPTRE R EE

Compensation of key management personnel FTEEEAE 2 H M
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as follows: EERFAZHMOT

2013 2012
—E—=F —ZT——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term benefits EHIER 43,217 39,596
Post-employment benefits B2 1E A 77 54
43,294 39,650

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013 @
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 EHEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

46. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 46. T EM B A BFFE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 R-_E—=F=-A=+—HE-_ZT——%=AH°
March 2013 and 31 March 2012 are as follows: =+—H ' ARRIZEEHBARFBLOT !

Paid up issued/
Place of incorporation/  registered ordinary

Name of subsidiary registered operation share capit}l Proportion of equity interests held by the Company Principal activities
HRERM
KEAAR AU/ 2B HREERA KARERER S E3:5 31
2013 201
Zg-zF i
Directly Indirectly Directly Indrectly
Bk i BR itk

(old Properties Group Limited Hong Kong HKS 100% - 100% - Provision of administrative senices
ERHESEARAT &k 187 R
Proman International Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding and trading of
RERRARAA B 187 constucton materals

RERRREEREH
(old Properties (Tianjin) Company Limited PRC* RMB2,840,388,300 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding, property
BRE (R#) ERAR e ARHE2,840,388 30070 development and mestment

REER NEARRRE
Tianjin Huading Real Estate Company Limited PRC RIMB100,000,000 - 100% = 100%  Property development
REEREXARAT e AR100,000,0007 ES
Tianjin Goldin Internationgl Club Company Limited® ~ PRC* U5$168,600,000 100% - 100% - Hotel and polo club operation
RERHEREABERLF g 168,600 000%7C BRRERERH
Fonde Hotels Group Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of hotel management services
SETEEEEEERARAR & 187 RIEEERRH
Metropolo Hotel Management Company PRC* 598,600,000 - - 100% - Provision of hotel management services

(Tianjrn Limite e 8,600,000 TC RIAEEERE

RoSKe (R2) EEERARAR!
(ol Properties Real Estate Agency Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100% = 100%  Provision of sales and marketing
RRHEREERAR &t 1% senices

RUHERTRERY
Metropolo Country Club Management Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of consultancy sevices on

Company Limited &5 171 polo club operation

SRS AT ERERAA REReRHRI AR
Goldin Metropolitan International Club Hong Kong HKS1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of polo clubs membership
_(Hong Kong) Limited £ 17 senvices
BRGARL e (BE) BRAF RUSRE RN
Goldin Properties (Construction Management)Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100% = 100% Provision of project management
EE (RETRER) AR B 1A sences

RIVARERRH
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 HlEZE =T —=F=A=+—HIEFE

46. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries — continued

47.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

Metropolo Hotel Management Company (Tianjin) Limited has been
merged with Tianjin Goldin International Club Company Limited
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

These companies were established in the PRC in the form of wholly-
owned foreign enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting
at 31 March 2013 or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company,
principally affected the results of the year or formed a
substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Major Non-Cash Transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Convertible Bonds
due 2012 and the Convertible Bonds due 2014 (as defined
in note 35) issued by the Company with principal amount of
HK$7,479,987 (2012: HK$1,325,678,682) and HK$288 (2012:
HK$4,684,602,708) had been converted into 2,137,139 (2012:
378,765,336) and 60 (2012: 975,958,896) ordinary shares of
the Company during the year, respectively.

@

2

46. TEM B A RFE - &

47.

(a)

(b)

RBE-Z-—=F=A=+—HLFE  REFK
B(RE)BEEEERARE BRESRER AL
BERABAH

ZERAAINEBE L EAETBEKL

RZT—=F=HA=+—HBFAEMAK
- ZE AR EE A ERES -

ARRIEZRA » LRINBZANRRME
ARA/EBFEAKEFAREREAE
BEEMELEZAR - EEZRRINEH
B RRIZHBESRBBENITER -

TEFRERS

HE_ZT-—=F=ZA=+—HILFEAR ' AR
RIETZ RS BEART,A79,987EFL( T ——

F

©1,325,678,682%8 L) 2 — & — —F 5|5

ARRESRAS 288 L (T ——F ¢
4,684,602,708 7 7L ) 2 =& — MU 4F ZI| B A &
RES (RKIE3RATE) DRRFERERIRE
2,137,139 (=Z — =4 : 378,765,336/%) &
60A% (—Z— —4F : 975,958,8960% ) NN &) & @

B e
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Financial Summary
BB E

Year ended 31 March
BZEZ=A=1t—HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—F-=F ZTF ZT—F ZF-TF ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAT FAT FH&T
RESULTS S
Turnover S 128,976 57,079 - - -
Profit before tax R 5% Al vt A 281,801 467,088 234,543 1,373,801 666,260
Income tax (expense) 5 (Fsx)
credit Eiine) (213,833) (17,372) (112,619) (444,194) 64,033
Profit for the year FE & A 67,968 449,716 121,924 929,607 730,293
At 31 March
R=B=+-—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F —T——-F ZT——F ZZT-FTF ZIZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FAT FA&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥BERAE
Total assets BEMRE 23,267,512 18,221,197 15,108,768 9,630,116 7,626,542
Total liabilities BmaE (8,106,398) (3,413,549) (8,813,135) (3,832,520) (2,802,912)
Total equity T ABER 15,161,114 14,807,648 6,295,633 5,797,596 4,823,630

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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Particulars of Properties Held
HEZYEFE

Details of the Group's properties held as at 31 March 2013 areas R-ZT—=F=A=+—H AEEFE 2WEH

follows: 1BaE -
Approximate Anticipated
GFA Stage of completion
Location Type Percentage (sq.m.) Leaseterm  completion date
B4
HREHE
2 &l BO (FrK) HEH TR B BHTIEH
Property held for Tianjin Commercial/ 100% 1,013,243 Medium Under construction 2016, in phases
investment X2 Office ] EEH Z2RE SRR
FEREME CEVE /N
Property under Tianjin Residential 100% 709,090 Long Under construction 2013 to 2014,
development xE FE RE TegE in phases
held for sale —T=F%F
FEHEZ ERANZE —TmE
AER
Hotel property Tianjin Hotel 100% 58,000 Medium Completed 2011
BIEME R BIE ] R —T——F
Land use rights Tianjin Commercial/ 100% 108,000 Medium Project planning 2015
included in xiE Office HH] and design “E-AHfF
other assets CEVE /N A A8 REr
SIARMEEZ
TR
1,888,333
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